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Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited [PICT] is part of Global terminal 

Operators, International Container Terminal Services Inc. and the only listed container 

terminal of Pakistan. Belonging to the important segment of the overall trade cycle, PICT 

envisions tremendous trade growth especially high value-added exports of Pakistan. PICT 

confers meticulous emphasis to its export customers through dedicated customer centric 

services to ensure that it remains the leading “Terminal of Choice” for the export and 

overall trade at Karachi Port.
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Diligence    

We work hard at our tasks, believing in 
performing dutifully, and in committing to  
first-rate work. Beyond duty, we are willing to 
go the extra mile. Our company has no room 
for mediocrity. Focused, punctual and 
dedicated are a few indisputable attributes 
PICT employees possess.

We care; we respect. We support each other 
to ensure that PICT remains viable, and that 
relations with stakeholders of the port 
community are stable. We work to sustain our 
families, pay our dues, or help a relative or a 
neighbor in need. We value and strive to 
promote workplace harmony, recognising the 
vital role that interdependence has played in 
PICT's ceaseless effort to achieve excellence.

Our purpose in doing our work is to grow: 
grow as individuals, expand as a business, 
and progress as a global organisation. 
More than sustaining lives, we work 
because of self-worth and dignity. As we 
further improve ourselves personally and 
professionally, we believe that the stability 
and continuous growth of PICT follows.

Growth

We value our work and take responsibility 
for our actions. We also carry a positive 
attitude, believing that by working with 
optimism and self-fulfillment, we produce 
positive results for the company and for 
ourselves. PICT management and 
employees give worth to being employed.

Core 
Values
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Be the container terminal of 
choice for trade at Karachi port

VisionVision
To be most reliable Port gateway 
of international trade with the 
commitment to provide customer 
centric services

MissionMission

Compassion

Accountability
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Company Information

Board of Directors 
Chairman 
Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen
(Appointed on May 18, 2020)

Mr. Andrew James Dawes 
(Resigned on May 18, 2020)
 
Directors 
Ms. Gigi Iluminada Miguel

Mr. Gordon Alan P. Joseph 
(Independent Director)

Mr. Jacob Christian Gulmann

Mr. Rune Rasmussen    
(Independent Director)
(Appointed on November 11, 2020)

Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui 

Capt. Zafar Iqbal Awan
(Appointed on January 29, 2021)

Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui 
(Resigned on January  25, 2021)

Mr. Roman Felipe S. Reyes 
(Independent Director)
(Resigned on November 10, 2020)

Company Secretary 
Mr. Adil Siddique

Audit Committee 
Chairman 
Mr. Rune Rasmussen    
(Appointed on November 11, 2020)

Mr. Roman Felipe S. Reyes 
(Resigned on November 10, 2020)

Members
Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui 

Ms. Gigi Iluminada Miguel

Chief Internal Auditor 
Mr. Moammar Raza 

 Risk Management Committee
Chairman 
Mr. Gordon Alan P. Joseph 

Members
Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen 
(Appointed on May 18, 2020)

Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui 

Mr. Andrew James Dawes 
(Resigned on May 18, 2020)

Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee 
Chairman 
Mr. Gordon Alan P. Joseph

Members
Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen
(Appointed on May 18, 2020)

Capt. Zafar Iqbal Awan
(Appointed on January 29, 2021)

 Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui 
(Resigned on January  25, 2021)

Mr. Andrew James Dawes 
(Resigned on May 18, 2020)

Key Management 
Chief Executive Officer 
Mr. Khurram Aziz Khan 
 
Chief Financial Officer 
Mr. Muhammad Hunain 
 
External Auditors 
EY Ford Rhodes 

thChartered Accountants , 6  Floor, Progressive Plaza 
Beaumont Road, P.O. Box 15541, Karachi-75530 

Legal Advisor 
Usmani & Iqbal , F-73/11, Swiss Cottages
Block-4, Clifton, Karachi 
 
Bankers 
 Faysal Bank Limited 
Habib Bank Limited 
National Bank of Pakistan 
Samba Bank Limited 
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited
United Bank Limited 
 
Registered & Terminal Office 
 Berths 6-9, East Wharf, Karachi Port, Karachi 
UAN: +92-21-111 11 7428 (PICT) 
Fax :  +92-21-3285-4815 
Email: investor-relations@pict.com.pk 
Website: www.pict.com.pk 

Share Registrar / Transfer Agent 
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited 
99-B, Block 'B', SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, 
Karachi - 74400
Tel:  +92-21-111-111-500  Fax: +92-21-34326053
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Mr. Rune Rasmussen is 
an Independent Director. 
Mr. Rune Rasmussen has 
more than 15 years of 
extensive experience in 
A s s e t  M a n a g e m e n t ,  
directing large investment 
projects and portfolios, 
business transformations 
and facilitating change 
management. He had been 
holding senior management 
roles in Valais Investment 
Management, Dexia Bank 
a n d  A c u m a  W e a l t h  
Management in the past. 
Mr. Rune holds a Masters 
degree in Economics and 
B a c h e l o r  i n  A r t s ,  
Economics from University 
of Copenhagen. He was 
appointed as Director of the 
Company on November 11, 
2020 after resignation of Mr. 
Roman Felipe S. Reyes on 
November 10, 2020

Mr. Gordon Alan P. 
Joseph is an Independent 
Director. Gordon Alan P. 
Joseph is the Honorary 
Consul of Kingdom of the 
N e t h e r l a n d s  t o  t h e  
P h i l i p p i n e s ,  a n d  
concurrently the Chairman 
of the Executive Committee 
o f  t h e  M e t r o  C e b u  
Development Coordinating 
Board. He is also the largest 
shareholder and CEO of 
Ph i lpac i f i c  Insurance  
Brokers, Inc., one of the 10 
largest insurance and 
reinsurance brokers in the 
Philippines. Mr. Joseph has 
a Bachelor's degree from 
De La Salle University, 
Manila in 1979.

Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen 
has over 35 years of 
international experience 
within the Port, Shipping & 
Logist ic industry.  Mr.  
Madsen is the Senior Vice 
President, Regional Head 
for Europe, Middle East and 
Africa of International 
Container Terminal Services 
Inc. Alongside, he is a 
Director of several other 
ICTSI group companies.   
Mr. Madsen spend 27 years 
with the A. P. Moller-Maersk 
G r o u p  i n  v a r i o u s  
i n t e r n a t i o n a l  s e n i o r  
positions. Mr. Madsen was 
appointed as Director of the 
Company and Chairman of 
the Board on May 18, 2020, 
replacing Mr. Andrew 
James Dawes.

Mr. Sharique Azim 
Siddiqui is the Chief 
Execut ive Off icer of 
Pakistan International 
Bulk Terminal Ltd which is 
Pakistan’s f i rst bulk 
terminal for handling 
cement, clinker and coal. 
He joined Marine Group of 
Companies in 1997 and 
was involved in various 
Group ventures. He has 
also served as Project 
D i rec to r  and  Ch i e f  
Operating Off icer at 
Pakistan International 
Container Terminal from 
2002 t i l l  2012. Mr.  
Sharique has also served 
as  CEO o f  Ma r i ne  
International Container 
Terminal. He sits on the 
B o a r d  o f  v a r i o u s  
companies in the Marine 
Group and as well as on 
the Board of other private 
companies. He  did his 
Bachelors and Masters of 
Arts in Economics from 
Tufts University, Boston, 
USA.

Capt. Zafar Iqbal Awan 
is a qualified Master 
Mariner and member of 
International Federation 
o f  S h i p m a s t e r s '  
Association (IFSMA) UK, 
Institute of Chartered Ship 
Brokers, Royal Institute of 
Navigation, Chartered 
Institute of Logistics & 
Transpo r t ,  Nau t i ca l  
Institute, Master Mariners 
Society of Pakistan and 
P a k i s t a n  B e l g i u m  
Business Forum. He 
possesses over 30 years 
of experience in Port & 
Shipping industry. He was 
appointed as Director of 
the Company on January 
29, 2021 after resignation 
o f  Mr.  Aas im Az im 
Siddiqui on January 25, 
2021

Ms. Gigi Iluminada 
Miguel is  the V ice 
President and Treasurer 
Global Treasury of ICTSI. 
From 1990 to 2008, she 
has served in China 
Banking Corporation. 
Ms. Miguel has an MBA 
degree from Ateneo de 
Manila Graduate School 
of Business, Philippines in 
2000 and BSc degree in 
Applied Mathematics 
from University of the 
Philippines, Philippines in 
1990.

Mr. Jacob Christian 
Gulmann has been with 
ICTSI since 2013, first as 
Director of Business 
D e v e l o p m e n t  a n d  
presently as Managing 
D i rec to r  o f  ICTS I ’s  
terminal operations in 
Onne, Nigeria. Prior to 
this, Mr. Gulmann was 
with the A.P. Moller-
Maersk Group where he 
held positions in finance 
a n d  b u s i n e s s  
development. 
M r.  G u l m a n n  i s  a  
graduate  o f  Oxford 
University.
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Chairman’s Review 

Hans-Ole Madsen       
Chairman of the Board      
Karachi
Dated: March 31, 2021

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
I am pleased that your company has delivered strong financial results in 2020 and has demonstrated great 
resilience during unprecedented challenges brought about by Covid-19. It is highly commendable that our 
management and staff ensured high standards of service levels, even during the most difficult phases of the 
pandemic. Despite increasing competition in container terminal industry and covid-19 impact, optimal utilization 
of resources and strict cost containment approach, your Company ended the year with Earnings per share of  
Rs. 24.48.
GOVERNANCE AND CULTURE REVIEW OF BOARD'S PERFORMANCE
The Board understands that it needs members who bring core competencies, diversity, requisite skills, and 
experience for successful governance of the Company. Due to expiration of the stipulated three-year term of the 
Board, elections of Directors were held on February 24, 2021. The Board includes diversified professionals 
having expertise in the fields of port, shipping & logistics, financial management, strategy, business development, 
assets management, business transformations, risk management and insurance. The Board has constituted an 
independent Audit Committee, Human Resource and Remuneration Committee and Risk Management 
Committee for further strengthening the governance structure of the Company. 
The Board acknowledges its responsibilities to maintain effective oversight of the operations of the Company 
through quarterly meetings of the Board and its Committees. All the Directors, including the Independent 
Directors, fully participated in and made contributions to the decision-making process of the Board.
The Board its Committees and individual Directors carried out self-evaluation of their performance during the 
year and found it to be satisfactory. The overall aim was to measure the current performance of the Board and 
identify areas for improvement in future years. 
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
I would like to thank my fellow board members for their active contributions in this year which enabled the 
Company in achieving its objectives while continuing to create long term value for the shareholders. I would also 
like to acknowledge our CEO, Mr. Khurram Aziz Khan, his executive team and all the employees of the Company 
for their hard work, commitment and leadership. 
I also express my gratitude to our esteemed investors and other stakeholders including Karachi Port Trust, 
Ministry of Maritime Affairs, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Pakistan Stock Exchange for their 
unwavering support and continued trust in the Company which has enabled PICT to achieve new heights in a 
socially responsible manner.

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present to you the Annual Report of 
Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited for the year ended December 31, 
2020. 
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
The year in review may be remembered as the most challenging periods with respect to 
health and economy in global history. Almost every individual, business and country 
witnessed hardships and challenges like never before. In this scenario, terminal 
continued to operate 24/7 with all possible effective precautionary measures to 
safeguard health and safety of employees and stakeholders.

For the year ended December 31, 2020
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24.48



The Board of Directors of Pakistan International Container 
Terminal Limited are pleased to submit the Annual Report of 
your Company including the audited financial statements for the 
year ended December 31, 2020.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REVIEW AND BUSINESS 
CONTINUITY DURING COVID-19                     

The world encountered most unusual economic situation as a 
result of the Covid-19 pandemic which, like rest of the world, also 
affected Pakistan. This led to a health crisis and downturn of socio-
economic landscape of the world owing to lockdowns, suspension 
of flight operations, restrictions of inter-city movements and public 
gatherings. The container terminal industry also faced its own set 
of challenges during the year due to Covid-19 related interruption in 
supply chain cycle. 

Amidst all these challenges your Company stood with 
Government of Pakistan and country fellow-men through 
continuation of 24/7 terminal operations. In this pursuit, keeping 
health and safety of our employees and stakeholders our 
utmost priority the Company developed comprehensive 
business continuity strategies and practices for sustainability. 
Your Company made conscious efforts to reduce the spread 
risk by effective implementation of social distancing practices 
including work from home, presence of essential staff only in 
terminal premises, effective use of protective equipment. Your 
Company also took various initiatives to manage the morale of 
employees including special recognition for front line staff and 
arranging counselling sessions for emotional well-being.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

Despite multitude of challenges faced by the Company during 
the year coupled with increasing competition, your Company 
managed to handle 394,458 containers as compared to 
366,347 containers handled during the last year. Through 
operational excellence and cost optimizations, your company 
posted Gross Profit of Rs 4,121 million. The year ended with net 
profit of Rs 2,673 million which was higher by 25% in 
comparison to last year. 
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Directors’ Report

The Board is pleased to propose final cash dividend of 50% i.e. Rs. 5.00 per ordinary share in addition to the paid 
thinterim cash dividends amounting to Rs 20.54 per ordinary share for the approval of the members at the 20  

Annual General Meeting to be held on April 29, 2021. These financial statements do not include the effect of 
above proposal which will be accounted for in the year in which it is approved by the members.

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

As the Covid-19 pandemic continues to challenge the global economic environment, measures to counter the 
resulting health and socio-economic challenges such as vaccination campaigns, collaborative health policies, 
micro-smart lockdowns and Governments' financial support are expected to uplift the economic activity in 2021. 
Global containers shipping industry witnessed steep rise in blank sailings and low schedule reliability in 2020. 
Blank sailings have reduced to few numbers in 2021 and are projected to remain low. In view of few projected 
blank sailings, outlook for the container shipping market remains strong but at the same time remains 
unpredictable. World Trade Organization expects a 7.2% rise in world merchandise trade. Accordingly, Pakistan 
container market will also reap the benefits of rise in world trade. Your company will also try its level best to retain 
sustainable market share at Karachi Port through offering customer centric services coupled with digitally 
enhanced experience. 

Your Company has the concession agreement with Karachi Port Trust (KPT) for a period of twenty-one years 
commencing June 18, 2002. In accordance with the concession agreement for subsequent renewal of the term, 
the Company also has the first right of refusal subject to certain conditions, moreover, based on a precedence of 
awarding early extension by KPT, your Company has been actively pursuing KPT and Ministry of Maritime Affairs 
for early extension prior expiry of concession. To date KPT has not replied positively to PICT's request to consider 
early extension renewal option.

(Rs. in millions)
20192020

7,927

3,459

3,011

2,137

1,028

3,165

(448)

(1,146)

1,572

19.58

9,009

4,121

3,764

2,673

1,572

4,245

(819)

(2,242)

1,184

24.48

Revenue

Gross Profit

Profit before taxation

Profit after taxation

Un appropriated profit brought forward

Profit available for appropriation

Appropriations:

-        Final cash dividend for the year end December 31, 2019 @ 

         Rs. 7.5 per share (December 31, 2018 @ Rs. 4.1 per share)

-        Interim cash dividends for the year end December 31, 2020 @ 

         Rs. 20.54 per share (December 31, 2019 @ Rs. 10.5 per share)

Unappropriated profit carried forward 

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Shares
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CORPORATE ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND IMPACTS OF BUSINESS ON ENVIRONMENT

Your Company is ISO 14001 certified and is fully committed to perform safe and compliant container terminal 
operations. Your Company has Environmental Management Plan in place that describes the monitoring program 
for associated parameters and has been acknowledged by the Environmental Protection Agency.

Your Company also has a robust mechanism in place to collect and dispose of hazardous and non-hazardous 
waste through authorized source. In addition, Sewerage Treatment Plants are also installed for the treatment of 
effluent prior to final discharge. 

Besides, a dedicated facility has been developed to accommodate leaked containers and for transportation of 
such containers within the terminal premises to avoid spillage during shifting as protection from adverse 
environmental impacts.

During the year, your Company also partnered with World Wide 
Fund for Nature (WWF) for wetland conservation program adding 
yet another leaf to sustainable global partnerships extended 
towards ecologically improved societies. Under the PICT-WWF 
CSR Alliance, more than 2000 mangroves were planted around 
Arabian Sea Coastal Belt besides holding awareness program on 
importance of green environment.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company envisions to be the patron of socio-economic uplift by consciously embracing corporate social 
responsibility in its commercial conduct. Efforts your Company has been projecting towards the health, 
education, environment and sustainable societal development is a true depiction of compassionate values 
synchronized within its day-to-day operations. A quick glance of the efforts your Company has made during the 
year is illustrated below:

Education
Your Company paves ways for the young inspiring talent of the society through empowering them to play 
significant part in raising societies. Giving opportunities to the youth for gaining corporate exposure in different 
aspects and bridging the gap between academia and corporate organizations, your Company has been 
providing scholarships, collaborating for academic projects and running internship programs.

 Health
Taking inspiring initiatives for raising health and wellbeing stature of 
the society, your Company's Chief Executive Officer partnered with 
Indus Hospital as Corporate Ambassador to help them in their 
cause of providing access to quality healthcare services absolutely 
free. Your Company also gifted wheelchairs to various charity-
based healthcare organizations to assist them in patient care 
besides also uplifting differently abled individuals.

Directors’ Report
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Community Care and Empowerment
Your Company supported surrounding communities during the 
lockdown period by distributing ration to deserving families. Your 
Company has also partnered with an international volunteer-based 
zero funds organization “Robin Hood Army”, under the CSR 
initiative 'Food for Cause' through which leftover surplus food of 
internal mess facility is shared with less fortunate members of the 
society. 

CORPORATE AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

Occupational Safety and Health Award
With the longstanding commitment of being the Container Terminal of Choice, your Company demonstrates 
focused approach towards Occupational Safety & Health of its employees and stakeholders. Your Company 
adheres to the international OSH standards and has earned recognition from prestigious corporate platforms, 
having recently been awarded first prize in Port & Terminal industry by Employers' Federation of Pakistan (EFP) for 
its best practices in health and safety arena. 

Green Supply Chain Award
Value Chain Sustainability and Operational Resilience are hallmarks of business success of your Company. This 

this evident from Green Supply Chain Award presented to your Company at the 10  Annual Sustainable Port & 
Shipping, Logistics & Supply Chain Summit. The award is a true illustration of responsible business conduct led 
by sustainable corporate strategies devised in the positive interest of the surrounding communities.

Corporate Excellence Award
Your Company has earned Corporate Excellence Accolade for the fifth consecutive year by Management 
Association of Pakistan for its commercial diligence and responsible terminal service operations. The award is a 
declaration of Company's continuous commitment synchronized with sustainable partnerships directed 
towards delivering customer centric solutions with best management practices.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Internal controls policy is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of 
the Company's operations, reliability of financial information and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations. Management ensures an efficient and effective Internal Controls by identifying controls, reviewing 
pertinent policies/procedures, and establishing relevant control procedures and monitoring systems. The 
Internal Control System has been designed to provide reasonable assurance to the shareholders and Board of 
Directors. The Management considers that the existing Internal Control System is adequate and has been 
effectively implemented and monitored.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board of Directors acknowledges their responsibility towards the implementation of an effective internal 
control environment throughout the organisation. The Company has set up an effective and efficient Internal 
Audit function which rigorously monitors the control environment of the Company. This department conducts 
comprehensive quarterly reviews of the activities of your Company. Broader targets of the said reviews are 
establishment and observance of internal controls for ensuring operational efficiencies and safeguard of 
profitability.
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The activities of the Internal Audit department are overseen by the Audit Committee which regularly monitors the 
performance of the department through review of the internal audit reports on quarterly basis and accordingly 
apprising the Board of its findings and recommendations.

The Board reviews the Company's financial operations and position at regular intervals by means of interim 
accounts, reports and other financial information.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 

The Pattern of shareholding as at December 31, 2020 is annexed to this Report.

The Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Executives and their spouses and minor children have made no 
transactions in the Company's shares during the year. Executives for this purpose means Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, Company Secretary and other employees of the Company 
designated as executives by the Board. The Board of Directors has set a threshold of annual basic salary of      
Rs. 1,200,000 for terming as Executive.

PARENT COMPANY

Your Company is a subsidiary of ICTSI Mauritius Limited, whereas its ultimate holding Company is International 
Container Terminal Services Inc., a company incorporated in Philippines.

AUDITORS

The present auditors, EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants stand retired at the conclusion of upcoming 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment. The Audit Committee has 
recommended the reappointment of the retiring auditors for the year ending December 31, 2021 with increase 
up to 10% of previous year's remuneration. The Board has endorsed the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINITIES AND ITS MITIGATIONS

The Company addresses risks individually in the course of its business operations. The management determines 
response strategies for such risks which includes avoid, transfer, reduce or accept strategy. Financial risks have 
been described in detail in note 25 to the financial statements that covers credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency 
risk, interest rate risk, equity price risk and capital risk.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Governance set out by the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 relevant 
for the year ended December 31, 2020 have been duly complied with. A statement to this effect is annexed 
with the Annual Report.

Directors’ Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As of the date of the Directors' Report, the Board of Directors comprises of one female and six male Directors. In 
respect of the executive, non-executive and independent directors, the Board comprises the following:

a)   Independent Directors: 
        Mr. Gordon Alan P. Josephi.
       Mr. Rune Rasmussen*ii.

b)   Non-executive Directors
         Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen**i.
        Ms. Gigi Iluminada Miguel [Female Director]ii.
       Mr. Jacob Christian Gulmanniii.
        Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiquiiv.
       Mr. Zafar Iqbal Awan***v.
 
c)   Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer
      Mr. Khurram Aziz Khan

All the directors take keen interest in the proper stewardship of the Company's affairs. During the year, four Board 
Meetings, four Audit Committee Meetings, one Human Resource and Remuneration [HR&R] Committee 
Meeting and one Risk Management Committee meeting were held. The names of Directors and their attendance 
in Board and Committee meetings held during the year are presented below:

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend Board meeting.
* Mr. Rune Rasmussen was appointed by the Board as Director of the Company on November 11, 2020 in place of Mr. Roman Felipe          
    S. Reyes.
** Mr. Hans-Ole-Madsen was appointed by the Board as Director and Chairman of the Board of Director on May 18, 2020 in place of Mr. 

Andrew James Dawes.
*** Subsequent to December 31, 2020, Mr. Zafar Iqbal Awan was appointed by the Board as Director of the Company on January 29, 2021 

in place of  Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui.

The Directors of your company retired on February 24, 2021 and were re-elected in Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting conducted on February 24, 2021.

    

Name of Director

Member of

Audit 
Committee

HR&R
Committee

Risk 
Management
Committee

Board

    �      

 

Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen** - P P 2

    

-
    

-
    

-

 

Mr. Andrew James Dawes**    -  
P
�

P
�    1     -    1    1 

  �   
 

 

Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui*** - P - 3 - 1 -
 

 
� �  

   

Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui ��P - P 4 4 - 1

  �  �  

Mr. Rune Rasmussen* P - - - -

 

-

 

-

 

� �     

Mr. Roman Felipe S. Reyes*

 

P - - 4 4 - -

 
 

   
   

Mr. Gordon Alan P. Joseph - P P 4 - 1 1

 

  
  

Ms. Gigi Iluminada Miguel P -  4 4 -

 

-

 

�   

Mr. Jacob Christian Gulmann 4
 

   

Mr. Zafar Iqbal Awan***

 

-

�

P

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

- -

- - - - - -

S.No

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

   

Meeting Attended 

Audit 
Committee

HR&R
Committee

Risk 
Management
Committee

    �  

    � �

 �  

� �  �  �

� �  

   

  

 

�   

�   



The Board places on record its sincere gratitude and appreciation for the leadership and contributions made by 
Mr. Andrew James Dawes who has been associated with Company since 2019 and welcomes                         
Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen as the new Chairman. The Board also places on record its appreciation for the 
contributions made by Mr. Roman Felipe S. Reyes and Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui during their tenure on the Board 
and Welcomes Mr. Rune Rasmussen and Mr. Zafar Iqbal Awan as Directors of the Company.

Directors Remuneration Policy

The Board has a duly approved policy for remuneration of the members of the Board for attending the Board and 
Committee Meetings. The Board remuneration is set to a level that is appropriate and commensurate with the 
level of responsibility and expertise, but at the same time ensures that it will not be construed as to compromise 
their independence. Directors are also entitled to reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection to 
attendance of the Board and / or Board Committee meetings.

Details of aggregate amounts of remuneration for Directors are disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

l The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of affairs 
 fairly, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
l Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company.
l Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and 
 accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement.
l International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 2017, as applicable in Pakistan, as 
 also stated in note 2.1 of the financial statements have been followed in preparation of financial statements.
l The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
l There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
l There has been no material departure from Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited Regulations   
 (PSX Regulations).
l A summary of key operating and financial data of last six years is annexed to this Report.
l Information about contribution to national exchequer in the form of taxes and levies is given in the respective 
 notes to the Financial Statements.
l The Company operates a contributory Provident Fund Scheme for its eligible permanent employees. The 
 value of its investments based on the audited accounts as at June 30, 2020 is Rs. 457 million.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The underlying values of the Company's Code of Conduct are based on honesty, integrity and openness along 
with respect for human rights and interests of the employees. The Company's Code of Conduct promotes 
guidelines on various ethical standards including issues such as conflict of interest, employee rights etc. The 
Board ensures that Code of Conduct is disseminated to, understood, and observed by employees. The Code is 
also available on the Company's website.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which 
have occurred between December 31, 2020 and the date of this report except the proposal of final dividend 
which is subject to approval by the Members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The effect of such 
declaration shall be reflected in the next year's financial statements.

COMMUNICATION

Communication with the members is given high priority. Annual reports are distributed to them within the time 
specified in the Companies Act, 2017. The Company also has a website,  which contains     www.pict.com.pk
up-to-date information on Company's activities and financial reports. 

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

The Chairman's review included in the Annual Report deals inter alia with the overall performance of the Board of 
Directors and effectiveness of the role played by the Board of Directors in achieving the Company's objectives for 
the year ended December 31, 2020. The Board of Directors endorse the contents of the Chairman's Review.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board would like to extend sincere gratitude and appreciation to its shareholders and customers for their 
continued trust and support. The commitment and dedication of employees is valued that has transformed your 
company into the successful entity that it is today. The Board would also like to express its appreciation to the 
Government of Pakistan, the Ministry of Maritime Affairs, the Securities & Exchange Commission and other 
regulatory bodies for their direction and continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mr. Khurram Aziz Khan
Chief Executive Officer

Karachi, 
Dated: March 31, 2021

Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen 
Chairman of the Board 
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9,009

4,121

3,764

2,673

1,572

4,245

(819)

(2,242)

1,184

24.48

2020
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Key Operating & Financial Data

Statement of Profit or Loss (Rs. in Millions)

Revenue

Gross Profit

Profit Before Taxation

Profit After Taxation

Statement of Financial Position (Rs. in Millions)

Share Holder Equity

Long term Loans

Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Current Assets

Total Assets

Ratios

Earnings Per Ordinary Share (Rs)

Break up Value Per Ordinary Share (Rs)

Return on Equity (%)

Debt Equity Ratio

Dividend Payout Ratio (%)

 December 
31, 2017 

 December 
31, 2016

 December 
31, 2015

 9,295.47

 4,627.48 

 4,137.17 

 2,748.62 

 

2,145.88 

 - 

 1,999.35 

 2,494.51 

 1,319.79 

 4,640.39 

 

25.18 

 19.66 

 113.59 

0:100

109

9,291.44

 4,545.97

 4,168.82 

2,797.87 

 

2,340.45

 - 

 1,452.16 

 1,837.74 

 1,205.16 

 4,178.20

 

 25.63 

 21.44 

 124.73 

0:100

93.6

8,828.24 

 4,285.16 

 3,731.67

 2,456.58 

 

2,693.68 

 298.76 

 1,940.07 

 2,873.68 

 1,854.84 

 5,567.36 

22.51

 24.68 

 93.09 

10:90

120

       9,009.17

4,120.66

3,764.27

2,672.52

2,455.59

-

2,318.46

2,376.63

3,186.65

4,832.22

24.48

22.50

100.86

0:100

104

 December 
31, 2020

 December 
31, 2019

 December 
31, 2018

8,250.37 

 3,750.99 

 3,290.18 

 2,134.92 

 

2,299.96 

 -

 1,608.30

 1,868.59 

 1,558.58 

 4,168.55 

 

19.56

 21.07 

 92.01 

0:100

90 

7,927.13

3,458.89

3,011.05

2,137.41

2,843.73

 -

1,607.39

1,752.59

2,406.81

4,596.32

19.58

 26.05

 83.11

0:100

92
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Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies 
(code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
For the year ended December 31, 2020

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 (here-in-after referred as 'the Regulations'') in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:
   Male: six (6)a)
   Female: one (1)b)

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:
  Independent Directors: a)
   Mr. Gordon Alan P. Josephi. 
   Mr. Rune Rasmussenii.
  
 Non-executive Directorsb) 
   Mr. Hans Ole Madsen - Chairman of the Boardi. 
  Ms. Gigi Iluminada Miguel [Female Director]ii. 
  Mr. Jacob Christian Gulmanniii. 
   Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiquiiv.
  Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui [Resigned on January 25, 2021. Mr. Zafar Iqbal Awanv. 
                                        was appointed in his place on January 29, 2021]
 
 Executive Director/ Chief Executive Officerc) 
     Mr. Khurram Aziz Khan 

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this Company.

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken 
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of 
the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along 
with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken 
by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) 
and the Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a Director elected 
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the 
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board.

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors in accordance 
with the Act and the Regulations.

During the year no Director has obtained Directors Training Certification.

There have been no changes in the position of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and 
Head of Internal Audit during the year.

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval 
of the Board.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

* For the purposes of number of Independent Directors on the Board, the Company has not rounded up the fraction in one-third as 
one, since the Company contemplates that keeping in view the comparison of the number of non-executive Directors [five], Chief 
Executive Officer [One] with number of Independent Directors [two], the Board under the current composition is adequately 
independent.
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The Board has formed following committees comprising of members given below:
 
a) Audit Committee 
i.   Mr. Rune Rasmussen, Chairman 
ii.  Ms. Gigi Iluminada Miguel, Member
iii. Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui, Member

b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 
i.   Mr. Gordon Alan P. Joseph, Chairman
ii.  Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen, Member 
iii. Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui, Member [Resigned on January 25, 2021. Mr. Zafar Iqbal Awan
              was appointed in his place on January 29, 2021]

c) Risk Management Committee 
i.   Mr. Gordon Alan P. Joseph, Chairman
ii.  Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen, Member
iii. Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui, Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
committees for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

a) Audit Committee [Quarterly]
b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee [Yearly]
c) Risk Management Committee [Yearly]
 
The Board has set up an effective internal audit function that is considered suitably qualified and 
experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating 
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) 
and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance 
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP 
and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, 
dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of 
Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Directors of the company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other 
services except in accordance with the Act, the regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the 
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; and

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been 
complied with.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Mr. Khurram Aziz Khan
Chief Executive Officer

Karachi, 
Dated: March 31, 2021

Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen 
Chairman of the Board 



An ICTSI Group Company 

An ICTSI Group Company 

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 31



Annual Report 202032 Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 33



Annual Report 202034 Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 35



An ICTSI Group Company 

An ICTSI Group Company 

Annual Report 202036

Financial Statements
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The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2,108,450
70,632
10,424

             -
2,189,506

427,508
438,165

6,389
219,117

-
1,315,635
2,406,814

4,596,320

1,091,532
1,752,198
2,843,730

87,328
57,871

145,199

1,518,866
55,885
32,640

1,607,391

4,596,320

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

4 
5 
 
6

 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
 
 
 
 
 

13 
13.3

6
14 
 
 

15 
 
 
 
 
  

16 

1,545,677
45,633
10,424
43,836

1,645,570

437,651
672,761

22,199
178,954

-
1,875,085
3,186,650

4,832,220

1,091,532
1,364,061
2,455,593

-
58,166
58,166

2,223,884
63,704
30,873

2,318,461

4,832,220

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
           Property, plant and equipment
           Intangibles
           Long-term deposits
           Deferred taxation - net

CURRENT ASSETS
           Stores, spare parts and loose tools - net
           Trade debts - net
           Advances
           Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
           Short-term investments - net
           Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
           Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
           Reserves

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
           Deferred taxation - net 

Long-term employee benefits            

CURRENT LIABILITIES
           Trade and other payables
           Unclaimed dividends
           Taxation - net

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31, 2020

Chief Financial Officer Director
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Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended December 31, 2020

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

7,927,129

(4,468,237)

3,458,892

(518,684)

(20,719)

(489)

92,051

3,011,051

(873,644)

2,137,407

-----------(Rupees) -----------

19.58

9,009,171

(4,888,515)

4,120,656

(535,885)

(4,778)

(617)

184,896

3,764,272

(1,091,753)

2,672,519

24.48

17 
 
18 
 
 
 
19 
 
20 
 
21 
 
22 
 
 
 
23 
 
 
 
 
 
24 

Revenue - net 
 
Cost of services 
 
Gross profit 
 
Administrative expenses 
 
Other expenses 
 
Finance costs 
 
Other income 
 
Profit before taxation 
 
Taxation  
 
Profit after taxation 
 
 
 
Earnings per ordinary share - basic and diluted 

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2020

2,672,519

   -

2,672,519

2,137,407

-

2,137,407

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Profit after taxation 
 
Other comprehensive income  
 
Total comprehensive income 

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director

An ICTSI Group Company 

Annual Report 202040

For the year ended December 31, 2020

Statement of Changes in Equity 

Balance as at December 31, 2018 
 
Profit after taxation 
Other comprehensive income  
Total comprehensive income 
 
Final cash dividend for the year 
   ended December 31, 2018 
   @ Rs 4.10/- per ordinary share 
 
Interim cash dividends for the year 
   ended December 31, 2019 
   @ Rs 10.50/- per ordinary share 

Balance as at December 31, 2019

Profit after taxation 
Other comprehensive income  
Total comprehensive income 
 
Final cash dividend for the year 
   ended December 31, 2019 
   @ Rs 7.5/- per ordinary share 
 
Interim cash dividends for the year 
   ended December 31, 2020 
   @ Rs 20.54/- per ordinary share 
 
Balance as at December 31, 2020 

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

1,091,532 
 

-  
-  
-  

 

-  
 

-  
 

1,091,532   

-  
-  
-  

 

-  
 

-  
 

1,091,532 

180,000 
 

-  
-  
-  

 

-  
 

-  
 

180,000 

-  
-  
-  

 

-  
 

-  
 

180,000 

1,028,427 

2,137,407
-

2,137,407

(447,528)

(1,146,108)
 

        1,572,198 

                                                   ------------------------------- (Rs. in thousands) ----------------------

Capital reserve 
Capital 

redemption 
reserve fund 

Revenue reserve 
Unappropriated 

profits 
Total 

reserves
Total 

Issued, 
subscribed
and paid-up

capital

1,208,427

2,137,407
-

2,137,407

(447,528)

(1,146,108)

1,752,198

2,299,959

2,137,407
-

2,137,407

(447,528)

(1,146,108)

2,843,730

2,672,519
-

2,672,519

(818,649)

(2,242,007)

1,184,061 

2,672,519
-

2,672,519

(818,649)

(2,242,007)

 1,364,061

2,672,519
-

2,672,519

(818,649)

(2,242,007)

2,455,593 

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

            Taxes paid
            Long-term employee benefits paid
           Finance costs paid
            Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

              Capital expenditure
           Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets
            Markup on savings accounts received
            Net cash inflow / (used) in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

            Dividends paid 
           Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

            Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

* No non-cash items are included in these activities 

4,821,548

(1,224,684)
(5,752)

(617)
3,590,495

(127,002)
348

148,446
21,792

(3,052,837)
(3,052,837)

 
559,450

1,315,635

1,875,085

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

29 

14

12 

3,696,218

(966,857)
(3,926)

(489)
2,724,946

(257,324)
3,058

79,945
(174,321)

(1,660,329)
(1,660,329)

890,296

425,339

1,315,635
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For the year ended December 31, 2020
Statement of Cash Flows

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND OPERATIONS

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan and is 
listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the Company is situated at 
Berths 6 - 9, East Wharf, Karachi Port, Karachi.

The Company is mainly engaged in providing container terminal management services. Currently the 
Company has a Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) contract with Karachi Port Trust (KPT) for the 
exclusive construction, development, operations and management of a common user container 
terminal at Karachi Port for a period of twenty-one years commencing June 18, 2002. For  renewal of 
subsequent term in light with concession agreement, the Company has first right of refusal subject to 
certain conditions.

The Company is a subsidiary of ICTSI Mauritius Limited whereas its ultimate parent company is 
International Container Terminal Services Inc., a company incorporated in Philippines.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
 
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of approved 
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and 
provisions of and directives issued under the Act. In case requirements differ, the provisions and 
directives of the Act, shall prevail. 

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) in pursuance of the S.R.O No. 
24(I)/2012 dated January 16, 2012 has given relaxation for the implementation of IFRIC 12 - “Service 
Concession Arrangements” due to the practical difficulties facing the companies. The impact on the 
financial results of the Company due to application of IFRIC-12 is disclosed in note 35 to these financial 
statements.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise 
specifically stated.

New standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and new interpretations

1. 

1. 1.

1. 2.

1. 3.

2.

2.2.

Adoption of standards, amendments and framework effective during the year

The Company has adopted the following accounting standard and amendments of IFRSs and the 
framework for financial reporting which became effective for the current year:

Standard or Amendment or Framework

IFRS 3 - Definition of a Business (Amendments)
IFRS 9 / IAS 39 / IFRS 7 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments)

2.1.

2.3.

2.3.1.
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Effective date 
(annual periods

beginning
on or after)Amendments:

IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 – Interest Rate 
Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 (Amendments)
IFRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework 
(Amendments)
IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended 
Use (Amendments)
IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts – Costs of Fulfilling a Contract 
(Amendments)
IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current 
(Amendments)
IFRS 10 / IAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments)

January 01, 2021

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2023

Not yet finalised 

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IAS 1 / IAS 8 - Definition of Material (Amendments)
IFRS 16 - COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions (Agreements)    
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

The adoption of the above standard, amendments of IFRSs and framework for financial reporting did 
not have any material effect on the Company's financial statements

Standards, amendments and improvement that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments of IFRSs and improvements to accounting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective 
standards, amendments or improvements:

2.3.2.

IASB Effective date
(annual periods

beginning on or after)
Improvement to accounting standards 
issued by the IASB (2018 – 2020 cycle)

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - Fees in the '10 percent' test for 
the derecognition of financial liabilities
IAS 41 - Agriculture - Taxation in fair value measurement

January 01, 2022
January 01, 2022

The above standards and amendments, where applicable, are not expected to have any material 
impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application. The Company is 
currently evaluating the impact of these standards.
     
Further, following new standard have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan. 
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January 01, 2023 IFRS 17  - Insurance Contracts 

Standard 

IASB Effective date 
(annual periods 

beginning on or after) 

Currently, the Company expects that above new standard will not have any material impact on the 
Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

3.

3.1.

3.1.1. 

a) determining the method of depreciation, residual values and useful lives of operating fixed  

 assets (note 4.1);

b) Taxation (note 3.5);

c) determining the provision for obsolescence of stores, spare parts and loose tools (note 7);

d) determining the allowance for expected credit losses (note 8); and

e) expected outcome of contingencies involving the Company (note 16).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
  
Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using straight line method so as to write off the 
historical cost of the assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives at the 
rates specified in note 4.1 to these financial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the 
month in which the asset is available for use and on disposals up to the month the respective asset 
was in use. Assets' residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed and 
adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date for indication 
that an asset may be impaired and carrying values may not be recovered. If any such indication exists 
and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires 
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment 
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are 
continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectation of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the process of applying 
the Company's accounting policies, the management has made the following estimates and 
judgments which are significant to the financial statements:

2.4.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020
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generating units are written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of property, 
plant and equipment is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. 
Major renewals and improvements, if any, are capitalised where they meet the definition of property, 
plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 
proceeds with the carrying amount of the relevant assets. These are included in the statement of 
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less any impairment in value. All expenditures connected with specific assets 
incurred during installation and construction period including advances to suppliers and contractors 
are carried under this head. These are transferred to specific assets as and when these assets are 
available for use.

Intangibles
 
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable 
to the asset will flow to the Company and that the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably. 

Costs incurred on the acquisition of intangibles are capitalised and are amortised on straight line 
basis over their estimated useful life. Amortisation is charged in the month in which the asset is 
available for use at the rates stated in note 5.1 to these financial statements. 

Useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed, at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date for events 
or changes in circumstances that indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets under development are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It 
consists of expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of intangible assets under 
development in the course of their development and installation. The assets are transferred to 
relevant category of intangible assets when they are available for use.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of net realisable value and cost. Cost is 
determined using first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis except for those in transit which are stated at invoice 
price plus other charges paid thereon up to the reporting date. Provision is made annually in the 
financial statements for slow moving and obsolete items if required.

3.1.2.

3.2.

3.2.1.

3.3.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of 
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and balances with banks.

Taxation

Current
 
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in 
accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 after considering rebates and tax credits available, 
if any, and includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

In making the estimates for income taxes, the Company takes into account the current income tax 
law and decisions taken by appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. There may be various 
matters where the Company's view differs with the view taken by the income tax department at the 
assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of a material nature is in 
accordance with the law. The difference between the potential and actual tax charge, if any, is 
disclosed as a contingent liability.

Deferred
 
Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary differences 
arising at the reporting date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the future 
taxable profits will be available against which the assets may be utilised. Deferred tax assets are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred tax asset to be recognised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each 
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit 
will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be 
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits. The management 
consider tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the entity expects, at the end 
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.4.

3.5.
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3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

3.10.

3.6. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs 
and have not been designated 'as at fair value through profit or loss'. After initial recognition, interest 
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest 
rate method. 

Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as 
well as through the amortisation process.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provision are 
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively to reflect the current best estimate.

Staff retirement benefits 

The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme (defined contribution plan) for all its 
eligible permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions are made by the Company and the 
employees to the fund in accordance with the rules of the provident fund scheme. Contributions from 
the Company are charged to statement of profit or loss for the year. 

Long-term employee benefits

The Company provides a facility to its employees for accumulating their annual earned leave under an 
unfunded scheme.

Accruals are made to cover the obligation under the scheme on accrual basis and are charged to 
statement of profit or loss. Accrual for compensated absences for employees is calculated on the 
basis of one month's gross salary. The amount of liability recognised in the statement of financial 
position is calculated by the Company using the above basis as the difference in liability is not 
expected to be material using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Foreign currency translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistani Rupee (functional currency) using the 
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign 
currencies are re-translated into Pakistani Rupee using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting 
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from 
the translations at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are taken to statement of profit or loss.

Dividend 

Dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is approved.

3.11.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying value of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are 
assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any 
such indications exist, then the recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised, 
as an expense in the statement of profit or loss, for the amount by which an asset's carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is determined through discounting of estimated future cash 
flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest 
levels for which they are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).  

Segment reporting

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment which is 
consistent with the internal reporting of the Company.
 
Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is the Company's functional and 
presentation currency.

Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; Fair 
Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). 

The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a 
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

§ it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash  
 flows; and
§ its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of  
 principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

3.15.

3.13.

3.14.

3.12.
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§ it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual  
 cash flows and selling financial assets; and
§ its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of  
 principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of a debt instrument that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably 
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in statement of other 
comprehensive income. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are 
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company 
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at 
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is initially 
measured at the transaction price, determined under IFRS 15) is initially measured at fair value plus, 
for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

§ Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments). These are subsequently measured 
 using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are  
 recognised in statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or   
 impaired. The Company's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables.
§ Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt  
 instruments).
§ Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and 
  losses upon derecognition (equity instruments).
§ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company's statement of financial 
position) when:

§ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
§ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed  
 an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a  
 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all 
 the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the  Company has neither transferred nor retained  
 substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of 
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset

to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated 
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the 
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at 
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that 
the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment / expected credit loss (ECL) on financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through 
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The 
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset's original effective interest rate.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 275 days past 
due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default 
when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding 
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the 
Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the 
contractual cash flows.

The Company uses the standard's simplified approach and calculates ECL based on life-time ECL on 
its financial assets. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company's 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the financial assets 
and the economic environment. The assessment of the correlation between historical observed 
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECL is a significant estimate. The amount of ECL is 
sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's 
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative 
of customer's actual default in the future. The ECLs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

ii) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 
effective hedge, as appropriate.  

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and  due to related parties.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or 
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date
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4.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets  
Capital work-in-progress 

 

1,457,635
88,042

1,545,677

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

4.1
4.2

1,901,008
207,442

2,108,450

of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated any 
financial liability as fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses 
are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through 
the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit or loss. This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss.

iii) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of 
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. Income and expense arising from such assets and liabilities are also offset 
accordingly.

Revenue

As per the business principles, revenue from contracts with customers is recognised net of rebates, if 
any when the services are rendered to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

The performance obligations of port berth operations are satisfied and payment is generally due upon 
completion and billing of the services.
Profit on deposits / saving accounts are recognised on effective interest rate basis.

Other income is recognised on accrual basis. 

3.16.

4.1. Operating fixed assets

 Transfers from capital work-in-progress
  Includes stand-by equipment having written down value of Rs 13.82 million

*
**

Transfers from capital work-in-progress
  Includes stand-by equipment having written down value of Rs 21.51 million

*

**

 December 31, 2020
 Cost   Accumulated Depreciation     

As at
January 01, 

2020

 

 

Additions / 
*transfers 

from capital 
work-in-
progress 

 

Disposals

As at
December 31,

2020

 
 

 

As at
January 01, 

2020

 

 

Charge
for the 
year 

(note 4.1.3)

 
 

 
 Disposals

 
 

As at
December 31,

2020

 
 

 
 

Written
down value

as at
December 31, 

2020

 
 

 

 

Deprec-
iation
rate 
per 

annum
%

 
 

 
 ------------------------------------------------------------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------------------------------------------------------------   

          
Leasehold land & 
  building (note 4.1.2) 247,547  - - 247,547

1,903,794

5,600,910

651,684

20,097

326,556

51,264

8,801,852

8,801,852

  168,445

1,548,495

4,175,774

457,318

14,590

252,008

42,712

6,659,342

6,659,342

 23,152

110,745

457,896

55,319

2,437

35,781

3,634

688,964

688,964

 -

-

         (170)

-

         -

(3,613)

(306)

(4,089)

(4,089)

 191,597

1,659,240

4,633,500

512,637

17,027

284,176

46,040

7,344,217

7,344,217

  55,950

244,554

967,410

139,047

3,070

42,380

5,224

1,457,635

1,457,635

 8.33

5-20

5-20

5-10

20

10-33.33

10-33.33

 
            
Leasehold       

        improvements  1,879,472 4,758
* 19,564

 -         
    

       

    

      

Container / terminal  
  handling / workshop     
  equipment**  5,469,035 4,435

* 127,819
(379)  

   
    
Port power generation  575,946  - 
   
Vehicles  20,097 -  -
    
Computers and other 

equipment  
 

316,692 6,164
* 7,741

(4,041)
  
Furniture and fixtures  51,561  (480)
  

133
*50          

 8,560,350 16,495
* 229,907

 (4,900)        
            

Total  8,560,350 246,402 (4,900)       

 December 31, 2019  

 Cost   Accumulated Depreciation     

As at 
January 01, 

2019 

Additions / 
*transfers 

from capital 
work-in-
progress  Disposals

 
 

As at
December 31,

2019

 
 

 
 

As at
January 01, 

2019

 

 

Charge
for the 
year 

(note 4.1.3)

 
 

 
 Disposals  

As at
December 31,

2019

 
 

 
 

Written
down value

as at 
December 31, 

2019

 
 

 

Deprec-
iation
rate 
per 

annum

 
 

 
  ------------------------------------------------------------------(Rs in thousands) ------------------------------------------------------------------  % 

             

Leasehold land &   
  building (note 4.1.2)  247,547  -

19,510
* 8,618

24,977
* 132,228

 -         
* 9,536

 -

9,255
* 10,808

 -
* 3,400
53,742

* 164,590

218,332

1,851,344

5,311,830

566,410

22,555

319,866

49,600

8,369,152

8,369,152

   -   247,547

1,879,472

5,469,035

575,946

20,097

316,692

51,561

8,560,350

8,560,350

 23,152

114,039

416,310

51,191

2,582

40,415

4,351

652,040

652,040

 -

-

         -

-

(2,458)

(22,351)

(1,186)

(25,995)

(25,995)

168,445

1,548,495

4,175,774

457,318

14,590

252,008

42,712

6,659,342

6,659,342

  79,102

330,977

1,293,261

118,628

5,507

64,684

8,849

1,901,008

1,901,008

 8.33

5-20

5-20

5-10

20

10-33.33

10-33.33

 
           

Leasehold      
       improvements    

 
-

-

      

   

     

Container / terminal  
  handling / workshop    

     

  equipment**   
 

 

     

 

   

     

Port power generation   - 

     

   

     

   

     

Vehicles        (2,458)  

           

   

     

Computers and other 
equipment  

 
(23,237)  

        

     
  

     

    

      

Furniture and fixtures    (1,439)        
            

             (27,134)          
             
             

Total    (27,134)           

145,293

1,434,456

3,759,464

406,127

14,466

233,944

39,547

6,033,297

6,033,297

1,005     
* 74,733
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4.1.1.  Disposals of operating fixed assets

Particulars 

Items having written down value 
of less than Rs. 5,000,000/- 
                 2020 

                  2019

Cost
Accumulated 
depreciation

Written 
down value 

Sale 
proceeds

(Loss) / gain 
on disposals - 

net
Particulars of

Buyer
Mode of
Disposal 

----------------- (Rs in thousands) -----------------

4,900

27,134

4,089

25,995

811

1,139

348

3,058

(463) 

1,919

Various

Various

 
Various 

 
Various 

4.1.2.

Note

4.1.3.

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

18 
19 

620,068
68,896

688,964

586,836
65,204

652,040
4.2. Capital work-in-progress:

 Movement4.2.1.

Opening balance 
Additions during the year 
Transferred to operating fixed assets 
Closing balance 

207,442
110,507

(229,907)
88,0424.2.3

164,282
207,750

(164,590)
207,442

5.

  Category wise breakup4.2.3.

Leasehold improvements
Container / terminal handling / 
  workshop equipment
Computers and other equipment
Port power generation
Furniture and fixtures

42,336

24,428
20,504

306
468

88,042

36,794

118,307
1,840

50,234
267

207,442

INTANGIBLES

45,6335.1 70,632Intangible assets 

This includes a leasehold land in the name of the Company having written down value of Rs 9.5 million 
(2019: Rs 13.41 million) and area of approximately 6 by 6 acres situated at Deh Mai Gharhi, Tappo 
Manghopir, Gadap Town, Karachi which is depreciated over the lease term. 

Depreciation charge for the year has been
   allocated as under:

       Cost of services
       Administrative expenses

4.2.2

4.2.2.

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

This includes Rs 33.805 million (2019: Rs 129.36 million) in Container/terminal handling/workshop 
equipment and Rs 76.701 million (2019: Rs 78.39 million) in other assets.

5.1.

5.2.

 December 31, 2020 
 Cost   Accumulated Amortisation     
  

As at 
January 01, 

 2020
Additions/ 
*Transfer

 
 

 

  

 
As at 

January 01, 
2020  

Charge
for the 
year 

(note 5.2)

 

 
 

 

As at 
December 31, 

2020   

Written down 
value as at 

December 31, 
2020  

Amortisation
rate per 
annum

%

 

 

------------------------------------------ (Rs in thousands) ----------------------------------   
        

241,404

37,889

279,293

 - 241,404

37,889

279,293

 170,772

37,889

208,661

 24,999 195,771 45,633 20-33.33 
      

  

Computer software           

Project development 
cost     -   - 37,889 - 20 

        

Total  -    24,999 233,660  45,633 

 December 31, 2019 
 Cost   Accumulated Amortisation     
 
 
 
 

 
As at 

January 01, 
2019 

Additions / 
*Transfer 

 
As at 

December 
31, 2019  

 
As at 

January 01, 
2019  

Charge  
for the 
year  

(note 5.2)  

 
As at 

December 31, 
2019   

Written down 
value as at 

December 31, 
2019  

Amortisation 
rate per 
annum 

   % 
 

Computer software           175,397  * 66,007  241,404  146,169 24,603

-

 170,772

37,889

  70,632 20-33.33 
           
           

Project development  
  cost     37,889 - 37,889 37,889 - 20 

 

Total 213,286 66,007 279,293 184,058 24,603 208,661 70,632 

  Intangible assets

*      Transfers from Intangible assets under development

 Amortisation charge for the year has been
  allocated as under:

Cost of services 
Administrative expenses 

22,499
2,500

24,999

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

18 
19 

22,143
2,460

24,603

6. DEFERRED TAXATION - net 

74,071
(117,907)
(43,836)

204,345
(117,017)

87,328

As at 
December 
31, 2020

------------------------------------------ (Rs in thousands) ----------------------------------

7.  STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS - net

Stores, spare parts and loose tools 
Fuel and lubricants 
 
Provision for obsolescence 

449,475
17,271

466,746
(29,095)
437,651

434,524
22,079

456,603
(29,095)
427,508

(Debit) / credit balances arising in respect of
timing differences relating to:

Accelerated tax depreciation and amortisation
Provisions
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8.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

9.

TRADE DEBTS - net

Unsecured 
Considered good 
Considered doubtful 

Allowance for expected credit losses

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

8.1, 8.2, 8.3 & 8.4 438,165
1,475

439,640
(1,475)

438,165

 The aging of unimpaired trade debts as at December 31 is as follows:

Related parties represent Rs 6.7 million (2019: Rs 1.34 million) due from Premier Mercantile Services 
(Private) Limited, and Rs 0.80 million (2019: Rs 1.08 million) due from Portlink International Services 
(Private) Limited.

The maximum amounts outstanding at the end of any month during the year from Marine Services 
(Private) Limited, Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited and Portlink International Services 
(Private) Limited were Rs 0.06 million, Rs 6.25 million and Rs 1.56 million respectively.

These are generally on a term ranging from 15 to 60 days.

Related parties 
Other than related 
    parties 
            2020
 
Related parties 
Other than related 
    parties 
            2019 

-

397,067
397,067

2,423

435,742
438,165

2,423

29,327
31,750

-

2,102
2,102

-

7,246
7,246

Total

Neither 
past due 

nor 
impaired

Within 90 
days

91 to 180 
days

Over 180 
days

-------------------------- (Rs. in thousands ) --------------------------

Past due but not impaired

7,529

665,232
672,761

4,919

622,804
627,723

2,610

30,909
33,519

- 

1,228 
1,228 

- 

10,291
10,291

 ADVANCES

Unsecured, considered good  
Suppliers and contractors 
Employees  

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

20,985
1,214

22,199
 

4,917
1,472
6,389

672,761
1,475

674,236
(1,475)

672,761
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11.

 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 
OTHER RECEIVABLES

 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS – net

Deposits
Prepayments

Other Receivables - considered good
Sales tax receivable 
Insurance claim receivable
Accrued markup
Receivable from tax authorities
Others

Amortised cost 
Certificate of investments (COIs)
Allowance for expected credit losses

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

16.1.3

11.1

5,480
64,620

-
4,289

335
100,000

4,230
108,854
178,954

43,000 
(43,000) 

- 

5,480
76,371

15,478
15,347

322
100,000

6,119
137,266
219,117

43,000 
(43,000) 

- 

11.1. Represents investment in COIs of Saudi Pak Leasing Company (the investee Company). The investee 
Company made default in repayment against COIs in August 2009 due to serious financial and 
liquidity crunch reportedly being faced by it. Due to uncertainties involved, the Company as a matter 
of prudence has carried impairment provision in these financial statements. However, the Company is 
continuously pursuing for the recovery of the investments amount.

12. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks in: 
  current accounts 
  savings accounts  
 
Cash in hand 

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

12.1
65,680

1,803,887
1,869,567

5,518
1,875,085

67,555
1,245,584
1,313,139

2,496
1,315,635

12.1. These carry profit at rates ranging from 3.89 to 12.85 percent (2019: 5.94 to 12.85 percent) per 
annum. This includes Rs. 0.14 (2019: 0.13 million) deposited with Islamic shariah compliant bank.

As at December 31, 2020, the Company has unutilised short-term running finance facility under 
markup arrangements aggregating Rs 300 million (2019: Rs 300 million) available from Faysal Bank 
Limited carrying mark-up rate based on 6 months KIBOR as benchmark rate plus 30 basis points 
(2019: 6 months KIBOR plus 30 basis points). This facility is secured against first pari passu 
hypothecation charge on all present and future current assets amounting to Rs 620 million (2019: Rs 
620 million).  

12.2.
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13.

13.1.

13.2.

 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised capital 

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019 

----- (Number of shares) ----- 

182,000,000 

18,000,000 

200,000,000 

182,000,000 

18,000,000 

200,000,000 

Ordinary shares of Rs 10/- 
   each 

Preference shares of Rs 10/-
   each 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

----- (Number of shares) ----- 

63,761,200
33,352,352

12,039,600
109,153,152

63,761,200
33,352,352

12,039,600
109,153,152

Ordinary shares of Rs 10/- 
    each  
issued for cash                
issued as bonus shares 
issued for consideration 
    other than cash                 

Note

13.2.1

1,820,000 

180,000 

2,000,000 

1,820,000 

180,000 

2,000,000 

637,612
333,524

120,396
1,091,532

637,612 
333,524 

120,396 
1,091,532 

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

13.2.1.

13.2.2.

 Represent shares issued in consideration for mobile harbour cranes, port equipment and a vehicle.

 The voting rights are in proportion to shareholding of the shareholders.

13.3.  Reserves

Capital reserve  
Capital redemption reserve fund  

Revenue reserve 
Unappropriated profits 

 As of the reporting date, 
  following are the major shareholders  
  (directly and indirectly) of the Company:

ICTSI Mauritius Limited-the Holding Company 
  64.54 percent (2019: 64.54 percent) 
 
Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited
  19.80 percent (2019: 21.23 percent) 

13.2.3.

180,000 
 
 

1,572,198

1,752,198

70,442,082 
 

23,174,829 

180,000 
 
 

1,184,061 

1,364,061

70,442,082 
 

21,609,029 

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

13.3.1 
 
 

13.3.2
 

13.3.1. The capital redemption reserve fund can be utilised by the Company in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and any applicable regulations therein.

An ICTSI Group Company 

Annual Report 202058

13.3.2. The shareholders are entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitlements in 
the form of bonus and right shares as and when declared by the Company.

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

14.

15.

 LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Opening balance 
 Accrual made during the year 

Payments made during the year 
Closing balance 

 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

 Trade creditors 
Technical services fee payable 
Staff related liabilities 
Payable to port authorities 
Accrued liabilities

 Other liabilities:
 Advances from customers
 Workers' Welfare Fund 
 Sales tax payable 
 Others

54,323
7,474

61,797
(3,926)
57,871

57,871
6,047

63,918
(5,752)
58,166

15.1 
15.1 

 
 16.1.2     

 
 
 

   15.1 

370,886
105,027
131,791
120,988
318,914

75,551
329,541
62,838
3,330

471,260
1,518,866

427,848
130,048
144,393
434,490
549,998

 
143,257
329,541
58,649
5,660

537,107
2,223,884

15.1.  Includes Rs 191.8 million (2019: Rs 146.99 million) payable to related parties. 

 Contingencies16.1.

 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS16.

16.1.1. The Trustees of the Port of Karachi (KPT) filed a civil suit 1201/2006 against the Company on 
September 13, 2006, in the Honourable High Court of Sindh (HCS) claiming a sum of Rs 304.5 million 
along with the interest, as default payment of wharfage and penalty thereon, for the alleged mis-
declaration of the category of goods on the import of Ship to Shore Cranes and Rubber Tyre Gantry 
Cranes in 2004.

On April 24, 2017, HCS passed the judgment and decree in favor of the Company and ordered that 
KPT is not entitled to the amount of wharfage charges claimed by it. On June 3, 2017, KPT filed an 
appeal 287/2017 against the aforesaid HCS' judgment before the Divisional Bench of HCS.
 
Upon advice of the Company's legal advisor, management believes that there is no merit in this claim 
and accordingly no provision in respect of above has been made in the financial statements.
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The Company has filed an interpleader civil suit 827/2007 on June 29,2007 before HCS against the 
Deputy District Officer, Excise and Taxation (DDO) and the Trustees of KPT in respect of demand 
raised by the DDO on the Company to pay property tax out of the Handling, Marshalling and Storage 
(HMS) charges payable to KPT amounting to Rs. 34.6 million for the period from 2003 to 2007. In 
compliance with the Order of HCS, the Company deposited the amount with Nazir of HCS, out of 
amount withheld by the Company from HMS charges billed by KPT.

In 2014, another demand was made by the DDO amounting to Rs 96.1 million for the period 2008 to 
2014. On an application filed by the Company for directions, HCS ordered for deposit of the 
aforementioned amount out of HMS charges billed by KPT. The Company complied with the order of 
HCS. In 2015, HCS issued further orders directing the Company to deposit the remaining HMS 
charges due and payable with Nazir of HCS in quarterly installments. Accordingly, the Company 
complied with the order of HCS. The amount deposited with Nazir of HCS is netted off with the HMS 
charges payable to KPT.
The decision of the suit is still pending and the Company's legal advisor believes that there may be no 
adverse implication for depositing the payments due to KPT with Nazir of HCS in view of complying 
with the HCS's order. Accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in the financial 
statements.

While completing the audit proceedings for the tax year 2013, the Deputy Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (DCIR) amended the deemed assessment of the Company by passing an order under 
section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain disallowances / additions in the 
taxable income and raised an income tax demand of Rs. 130.4 million. The Company filed an appeal 
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) who partly decided the appeal in favour 
of the Company. Consequently, the Company made the payment of Rs 100 million and filed a second 
appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), in respect of issues confirmed by the  
CIR-A, which is pending for adjudication.

The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the issues involved in the appeal will be decided in 
favour of the Company and accordingly, no provision in respect of excess demand raised by the DCIR 
has been made in the financial statements.

In 2017, the Assistant Commissioner Sindh Revenue Board (AC-SRB) under Sindh Sales Tax on 
Services Act, 2011 raised a demand of Rs 514.4 million along with penalty and default surcharge, for 
tax periods January 2013 to December 2014 on exempt services provided by the Company. The 
Company filed an appeal with Commissioner Appeals - SRB which is pending for hearing.

The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the Company has a strong defence and appeal will 
be decided in favour of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has not made any provision in 
respect of the above demand in the financial statements.

In 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the deemed assessment of 
the Company for the tax year 2016 by passing an order under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001 and made certain disallowances / additions to the taxable income and tax credits 
claimed by the Company and raised an income tax demand of Rs. 222.2 million. The Company filed 
an appeal before CIR-A who had decided the appeal partly in favor of the Company. Being aggrieved 
by the decision of CIR-A, the Company as well as the tax department filed the appeals before ATIR

16.1.2.

16.1.3.

16.1.4.

16.1.5.

16.1.6.

16.1.7.
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which are pending for adjudication. The Company has also sought stay from HCS against the 
demand created by ACIR after appeal effect proceedings. HCS vide its final order directed the ACIR 
not to take any coercive recovery measures till the finalization of appeal before the ATIR which is 
pending for adjudication.

The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the issues involved in the appeal will be decided in 
favor of the Company. Accordingly, no provision in respect of excess demand raised by ACIR has 
been made in the financial statements.

In 2019, ACIR amended the deemed assessments of the Company for the tax years 2018 and 2014 
by passing the orders under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain 
disallowances / additions to the taxable income and tax credits claimed by the Company and raised 
the income tax demands of Rs. 537.247 million and Rs. 451.828 million respectively. The Company 
filed the appeals before CIR-A who accepted the Company's contention in almost all respects except 
for couple of matters, for which CIR-A directed the ACIR for re-examination. Being aggrieved by the 
decision of CIR-A, the Company and ACIR filed the appeals before ATIR which are pending for 
adjudication.  

The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the issues involved in the appeals will be decided in 
favor of the Company. Accordingly, no provision in respect of the aforementioned demands raised by 
ACIR has been made in the financial statements.

Section 14A of Customs Act, 1969 was amended through Finance Act 2013 effective from           
July 01, 2013, according to which port authorities shall provide at its own cost adequate security and 
accommodation to customs staff for residential purposes, offices, examination charges, detention 
and storage of goods and for other departmental requirements to be determined by the Collector of 
Customs and shall pay utility bills, rent and taxes in respect of such accommodation.

The Company through its legal advisor filed a joint petition with other terminal operators and 
challenged the applicability of the aforementioned amendment in law before High Court of Sindh 
(HCS) which granted an interim order in favor of the terminals in November 2013. In January 2020, 
HCS dismissed the joint petition, however, suspended the judgment for filling an appeal before the 
Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP).

The Company has filed a joint Civil Appeal with other terminal operators challenging the impugned 
HCS Judgement before SCP. On March 03, 2020, SCP has suspended the operation of the 
impugned judgment and granted leave to appeal. The legal advisor of the Company is of the opinion 
that the Company has a reasonable chance of success in this case. Accordingly, no provision has 
been made in this respect in the financial statements.

In 2020, while completing the audit proceedings for the tax year 2015, Deputy Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (DCIR) amended the deemed assessment of the Company by passing an order under 
section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain disallowances/additions to the 
taxable income and tax credits claimed by the Company and raised an income tax demand of        
Rs. 499.290 million. The Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals 
(CIR-A) which is pending for adjudication. The Company has also sought stay from High Court of 
Sindh (HCS) against the demand created by DCIR. HCS vide its order directed DCIR not to take any 
coercive recovery measures till the finalization of appeal before the CIR-A. 

16.1.8.
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The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the issues involved in the appeal will be 
decided in favor of the Company. Accordingly, no provision in respect of the aforementioned 
demand raised by DCIR has been made in the financial statements. 

In 2020, ACIR amended the deemed assessment of the Company for the tax year 2017 by 
passing an order under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain 
disallowances / additions to the taxable income and tax credits claimed by the Company and 
raised an income tax demand of Rs. 398.155 million. The Company filed an appeal before 
CIR-A which is pending for adjudication. The Company has also sought stay from HCS 
against the demand created by ACIR. HCS vide its order directed ACIR not to take any 
coercive recovery measures till the finalization of appeal before the CIR-A.

The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the issues involved in the appeal will be 
decided in favor of the Company. Accordingly, no provision in respect of the aforementioned 
demand raised by ACIR has been made in the financial statements.

In 2020, DCIR passed an order under section 161(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for 
the tax year 2018 and raised an income tax demand of Rs. 281.514 million. The Company 
filed an appeal before CIR-A which is pending for adjudication. The Company has also sought 
stay from HCS against the demand created by DCIR. HCS vide its order directed DCIR not to 
take any coercive recovery measures till the finalization of appeal before CIR-A which is 
pending for adjudication.

The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the issues involved in the appeal will be 
decided in favor of the Company. Accordingly, no provision in respect of the aforementioned 
demand raised by DCIR has been made in the financial statements.

The Company is defending various suits, other than those disclosed above, filed against it in 
various courts in Pakistan. The Company's management is confident, based on the advice of 
its legal advisors, that these suits will be decided in the Company's favour.

16.1.9.

16.1.10.

16.1.11.
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16.2.  Commitments 

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

30,19830,401

144,354159,354

41,572
258,428

63,670
136,330

16.2.1.

16.2.2.

16.2.3.

Commitments for capital expenditure 

Outstanding letters of guarantees 

Outstanding letters of credit 

Utilised
Unutilised
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16.2.4.  Commitments in respect of Handling, 
Marshalling and Storage charges to the 
Karachi Port Trust (KPT)     
     
Not later than one year   
Later than one year but not later than 
  five years

190,552

516,142
706,694

17. REVENUE - net

Gross revenue
Sales tax

8,721,976
(794,847)

7,927,129

10,179,350
(1,170,179)

9,009,171

17.1
17.1

Includes Rs 74.43 million (2019: Rs 68.78 million) collected from customers on behalf of KPT in 
respect of sales tax on wharfage charges.

17.1.

204,852

313,380
518,232

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

Salaries, wages and other benefits 
Provident fund contribution
Staff training
Terminal handling and services
Royalty to KPT 
Handling, Marshalling and Storage charges
Fuel and power
Stores, spares and other maintenance charges
Technical services fee
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance
Software maintenance charges
Office maintenance
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle running 
   expenses
Communication, printing and stationery
Utilities
Depreciation and amortization
Others

 COST OF SERVICES18.

4.1.3 & 5.2 

16.1.2 
 
 

18.1 
 
 
 

589,933
16,704
1,098

584,302
971,344
191,572
577,033
316,215
529,951
153,307
153,716
90,240
31,546

11,293
4,154
1,189

642,567
22,351

4,888,515

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

556,502
16,531
4,824

459,573
835,611
180,684
626,922
281,319
466,302
145,114
133,256
90,183
26,548

12,780
5,150
1,321

608,979
16,638

4,468,237

Represents charges for technical services provided by ICTSI Mauritius Limited to the Company for 
advising on continuous improvement of the terminal operations, training of key personnel and risk 
management services.

18.1.
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 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES19.

4.1.3 & 5.2 

19.1

226,292
7,592

13,740
16,727
10,540
28,516
15,014
54,221
7,826

18,591
4,597

71,396
13,366
47,467

535,885

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

Salaries, wages and other benefits 
Provident fund contribution
Travelling, conveyance and vehicle 
  running expenses
Legal and professional charges
Auditors' remuneration
Security expenses
Insurance
Office maintenance
Advertising and public relations
Communication, printing and stationery
Utilities
Depreciation and amortisation
Fees and subscription
Others

220,727
7,465

24,474
13,613
9,040

18,991
14,947
54,242
14,592
16,482
5,302

67,664
12,920
38,225

518,684
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Includes Rs Nil (2019: Rs 10.57 million) paid to The Indus Hospital. None of the directors or their 
spouses have any interest in any donee's fund to which donation was made in the current year.

20.1.

19.1.

20.

Auditors' remuneration

Statutory Audit Fee 
Limited scope reviews and other certifications
Tax advisory services
Out of pocket expenses   

OTHER EXPENSES

Donations
Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets - net
Exchange loss – net

2,080
2,571
3,346
1,043
9,040

2,200
2,400
4,958

982
10,540

11,120
-

9,599
20,719

20.1

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

-
463

4,315
4,778

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

22. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets 
Markup on savings accounts 

Income from non-financial assets 
Gain on disposals of operating fixed assets - net 
Others 

 FINANCE COST

Bank charges 
Markup on running finance facility 

21.

617                      
-

617

148,459 
 
 

- 
36,437 
36,437 

184,896 

483
6

489

22.1 80,257

1,919
9,875

11,794
92,051

This includes Rs 0.67 million (2019: Rs 0.02 million) profit earned from bank accounts under profit 
arrangement with Islamic shariah compliant banks.

22.1.
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December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------Note

Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was revised by the Finance Act, 2018 according to the 
revision, tax at the rate of 5 percent shall be payable on the accounting profits before tax of every public 
company other than a scheduled bank and modaraba if at least 20% of its after tax profits are not 
distributed as dividend through cash within six months of the end of the tax year. 

As explained in note 33, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on March 31, 2021 have 
recommended sufficient cash dividend for the year ended December 31, 2020 for the approval of 
shareholders in forth coming Annual General Meeting. This is in addition to the interim dividends of    
Rs 20.54 per ordinary share declared during the year which together meets the above stated 
requirement. Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed profits has been recognised in the 
financial statements.

23.1.

23.  TAXATION

Current  
Deferred 
Prior     

23.1

992,215
(118,646)

75
873,644

1,222,983 
(131,164) 

(66) 
1,091,753 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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23.2.  Relationship between tax expense and 
       accounting profit:

Profit before taxation

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29 percent 
(2019: 29 percent)
Net effect of income tax provision relating to prior years
Others

Average effective tax rate 29% (2019: 29%) 

Profit after taxation                                 

 Weighted average ordinary shares in issue during the year                                                   

 Earnings per share                                                   

 EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE - basic and diluted24.

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

3,764,272 
 

1,091,639
(66)
180

1,091,753

3,011,051

873,205
75

364
873,644

19.58

109,153,152

2,137,4072,672,519

109,153,152

24.48

------- (Rs. in thousands) ------ 

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019
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25.1.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign 
currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. No changes made to the objectives and policies 
during the year ended December 31, 2020. The Board of Directors review and agree policies for 
managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to 
discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to 
control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties 
and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business 
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual 
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. 
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to 
developments affecting a particular industry.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on long-term deposits, trade debts, advances to employees, 
deposits, other receivables and bank balances. The Company seeks to minimise the credit risk 
exposure by dealing only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where 
applicable. The maximum exposure to credit risk on the financial assets of the Company at the 
reporting date is:

25.

------- (No. of Shares) ------ 

------- (Rupees) ------ 

At amortised cost - unsecured
Long-term deposits
Advances to employees
Trade debts – net
Deposits and other receivables
Bank balances

Carrying Values

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

10,424
1,214

672,761
14,334

1,869,567
2,568,300

Quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by 
reference to external credit ratings or the historical information about counter party default rates as 
shown below:

10,424
1,472

438,165
27,268

1,313,139
1,790,468
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25.1.1.

438,165

-
438,165

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

672,761

-
672,761

Carrying Values

Trade debts 
 
Customers with no defaults in the past one year
Customers with some defaults in past one year 
which have been fully recovered

25.2.

25.1.2.

4,594
1,864,973
1,869,567

10,664
1,302,475
1,313,139

Liquidity Risk   
       
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall 
due. The Company applies the prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and 
bank balances and by keeping committed credit lines. The table below summarises the maturity 
profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the following reporting dates:

Cash with Banks 

            A1
            A1+

Notes to the Financial Statements
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---------------------- (Rs. in thousands) ----------------------

1,407,846
1,407,846

427,848
427,848

-
-

1,835,694
1,835,694

-
-

-
-

Total
3 to 12 
months

1 to 5 
Years

Less than 
3 months

On 
demand

> 5 
years

755,601
755,601

370,886
370,886

-
-

1,126,487
1,126,487

-
-

-
-

Trade and other payables 
December 31, 2020
 

At amortised cost

Trade and other payables 
December 31, 2019 

Foreign Currency Risk    

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to a change in 
foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in 
foreign currency. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on the following US Dollars 
denominated trade and other payables:

25.3.

At amortised cost
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The following significant exchange rate has been applied 
  at the reporting dates:   

Pakistani Rupee to US Dollars

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------------- (Rupees) -------------

154.87160.19

The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, 
with all other variables held constant, of the Company's profit before tax:

Trade and other payables

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------------- (US dollars) -------------

449,1351,402,576

The foreign currency exposure is adequately covered as the majority of the Company's billing is 
determined in US dollars which is converted into Pak Rupees at the exchange rate prevailing at the 
transaction date.

Change in 
Exchange rates

Effect on profit 
before tax

(Rs. in thousands)

± 3,478    

 
± 5%

± 5%

December 31, 2020
 
December 31, 2019

± 11,234    

25.4. Interest rate risk
   
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of change in market 
interest rates relates primarily to the Company's financing obligations with floating interest rates. 
However, as of the reporting date the Company does not have any financing obligations with floating 
interest rates. 

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from movements in prices of equity instruments. The 
Company is not exposed to any equity price risk, as the Company does not have any investment in 
equity shares as at the reporting date.

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, 
strong credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its 
existing and potential investment projects, to maximise shareholder value and reduce the cost of 
capital.

25.5.

25.6.
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26.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in 
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the 
amounts of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net 
debt. Net debt is calculated as total loans less cash and bank balances. Capital signifies equity as 
shown in the statement of financial position plus net debt. The gearing ratio of the Company as at 
December 31, 2020 is Nil (December 31, 2019: Nil).

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets consist of 
bank balances, advances, trade deposits, other receivables and short-term investments. Financial 
liabilities consist of trade and other payables. The fair values of financial instruments are not materially 
different from their carrying values. 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: 

Level 2: 

Level 3: 

As of the reporting date, the Company does not have any financial assets carried at fair value that 
required categorisation in Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities.
Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that 
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived   
from prices).
Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 
observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount, charged in the financial statements for the year, is as follows:

27.

27.1.

 

 

Chief 
Executive

 

Directors / 
Chairman 

(Non- 
Executive) 

 
Executives  

Chief 
Executive 

Directors / 
Chairman 

(Non-  
Executive)  

 
Executives 

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019   

 --------------------------------(Rs. in thousands) -------------------------------- 
       

35,130
1,891

13,568

-

50,589

1

 
121,385

5,943
36,501

-

163,829

30

 
 

 
-
- 
- 

7,796 

7,796

7 

35,178
1,634

18,880

-

55,692

1

 
111,868

5,438
44,934

-

162,240

28

 
 

    

 

 

 
 

 

-
-
- 

8,061

8,061

7

28.

27.2. The Chief Executive and certain Executives of the Company were also provided with the free use of 
Company maintained cars, club memberships, medical, shares of ultimate parent company and other 
benefits in accordance with their terms of service.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties include the Holding Company, associated companies, and entities having directors 
in common with the Company, Staff Provident Fund, directors and other key management personnel. 
Detail of related parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions with or has 
arrangement / agreement in place during the year along with relationship and transactions with related 
parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as 
follows:

Managerial 
  remuneration 
Provident fund
Bonus paid
Fee for attending 
  meetings

Number 

28.1.  Name and nature of relationship

a)  Holding Company

ICTSI Mauritius Limited - 64.54% shares (directly and indirectly) held in the Company. 

b)  Associated Companies due to significant influence

Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited – 19.80% shares held in the Company 
Aeolina Investments Limited – 15.71% shares held in the Company.
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c)  Associated Companies/Undertakings due to common directorship with nil shareholding

Marine Services (Private) Limited
Port Link International (Private) Limited
Marine International Container Terminal (Private) Limited

529,951
1,472,550

454,946
27,701

1,146,371

206,584
7,834

18.1

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

Note

466,302
766,734

334,510
38,317

600,147

210,860
7,072

Holding Company
Technical services fee
Dividends

Associated companies / other related parties

Terminal handling services and rent
Revenue from container handling
Dividends

Key management personnel
Managerial Remuneration
Company's contribution to provident fund

Transactions with related parties 28.2.

d)  Associated companies, subsidiaries, joint ventures or holding companies incorporated 
outside Pakistan
 
ICTSI Mauritius Limited - a company incorporated in Mauritius
Aeolina Investments Limited - a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands

e)  Post-employment benefit plan

Staff Provident Fund of the Company

28.4.

28.3. Amounts due from and due to related parties, amount relating to remuneration of the Chief Executive 
and Directors are disclosed in the relevant notes to these financial statements.

All the transactions with related parties are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of 
Directors of the Company.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020
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29. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for non-cash items: 

          Depreciation and amortisation 
          Accrual for long-term employee benefits 
          Exchange loss - net 
          Finance cost 
          Markup on savings accounts 
          Loss / (gain) on disposals of operating fixed  

          assets - net

 Operating profit before working capital  
         changes 

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets 
          Stores, spare parts and loose tools - net 
          Trade debts - net 
          Advances, deposits, prepayments and other 

                  receivables 

Note

4.1.3 & 5.2 
14 
20 
21 
22 

20 & 22 

3,764,272

713,963
6,047
4,315

617
(148,459)

463
576,946

4,341,218

(10,143)
(234,596)

24,366
(220,373)

700,703

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

Increase in current liabilities 
           Trade and other payables 

Cash generated from operations 4,821,548

30. PROVIDENT FUND

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of the section 
218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.

31.

782

797

706

738

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019

---------- (Number) ---------
 NUMBER OF PERSONS EMPLOYED

Persons employed as of  
 
Average persons employed during the year 

3,011,051

676,643
7,474
9,599

489
(80,257)

(1,919)
612,029

3,623,080

46,439
(18,959)

14,903
42,383

30,755

3,696,218
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32. IMPACTS OF COVID-19

The World Health Organization declared Corona Virus (COVID-19) as a global pandemic on January 
30, 2020. COVID – 19 has spread throughout the country and measures taken by the Government of 
Pakistan to reduce the spread of the COVID-19 include lockdown of businesses, suspension of flight 
operations, intercity movements, cancellation of major events etc. Port and Container Terminal 
Operations, being essential services have been permitted by the Government. Consequently, the 
operation of the Company has continued to operate. The Company has started to observe declines in 
general business, including container throughput and revenues. With the growing number of cases in 
Pakistan and overall uncertain situation about the impacts and duration for which such a situation will 
continue, the overall impact on the entity's financial position and financial performance cannot be 
predicted with reasonable certainty. However, the Company has already incurred and will continue to 
incur costs as the Company continues to mitigate the adverse impact of the outbreak on its 
operations. The outbreak could have a material impact on the Company's financial results. The 
management continues to monitor the developing situation and would proactively manage any risk 
arising thereof.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been authorised for issue on March 31, 2021 by the Board of 
Directors of the Company.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors in their board meeting, held on March 31, 2021, have recommended a final 
cash dividend of Rs. 5.00 per ordinary share amounting to Rs. 545.766 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2020. The adjustment for this dividend will be incorporated in the subsequent financial 
statements of the Company.

EXEMPTION FROM APPLICABILITY OF IFRIC – 12 “SERVICE CONCESSION 
ARRANGEMENTS”

As explained in note 2.1, the required disclosure is as follows:

Under IFRIC-12, the consideration required to be made by operator (the Company) for the right to use 
the asset is to be accounted for as an intangible asset under IAS – 38 “Intangible Assets”. If the 
Company had to follow IFRIC-12, the effect on the financial statements would be as follows:

33.

34.

35.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020
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GENERAL

Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated.

The handling capacity of the Company is indeterminable because it depends on multiple variables 
such as dwell time of containers, availability of external yards and type of containers. The containers 
handled by the Company were according to the market demand.

36.1.

36.2.

36.

December 31, 
2020

December 31, 
2019 

-------- (Rs. in thousands) -------

1,271,774

31,855

301,048

624,258

42,156

86,014

314,693

180,684

Reclassification from property, plant and equipment
  (including CWIP) to intangible assets (Port 
  Concession Rights) – written down value

Reclassification from spares to intangible assets

Recognition of intangible assets (Port Concession
  Rights) on account of handling and marshalling
  charges (HMS)

Recognition of present value of concession liability 
  on account of intangibles (HMS)

Interest expense for the year on account of
  intangibles (HMS)

Amortisation expense for the year on account of   
  intangibles (HMS)

Amortisation expense for the year on account of
 concession assets (PPE and spares)

Increase in profit before tax for the year on account 
 of reversal of HMS

980,838

27,956

215,034

463,558

34,334

86,014

374,054

195,034

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020
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Categories of  Shareholders  Total Shares 
held  

Percentage 

Shareholders holding 10% or more 

ICTSI MAURITIUS LIMITED 
PREMIER MERCANTILE SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED 
AEOLINA INVESTMENTS 
EFG PRIVATE BANK 

        52,516,043  
        21,609,029  
        17,155,639  
       11,631,938  

               48.11  
               19.80  
               15.72  
               10.66  

Categories of  Shareholders  Shares Held  Percentage 

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse(s) and minor children
Aasim Azim Siddiqui
Sharique Azim Siddiqui

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
Aeolina Investments
ICTSI Mauritius Limited
Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited

NIT and ICP

Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking
financial institutions

Insurance Companies

Modarabas and Mutual funds

General Public
a. Local
b. Foreign

Foreign Companies

Joint Stock Companies

Trust 

Executives

                      4,500 
500                   

       

 17,155,639         
52,516,043         
21,609,029 

-

720

                         -   

1,100

3,227,757
453,020

13,870,169

311,966

 8

2,701

              0.00               
0.00 

           15.72            
48.11            
19.80

-   

              
0.00 

                   -   

0.00

              
2.95               
0.42            

12.71               

0.29

0.00

0.00

     109,153,152 100.00
 

Totals 
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Pattern of Shareholding
As at December 31, 2020

Details of Purchase/Sale of Shares By  Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses  or 
Minor Children during Year Ended December 31, 2020

N/A N/A N/ANone

Date of 
Purchase

No of Shares  
Purchased

Designation Name

No. of  Shareholders Total Shares
From To

 Share holdings Held  

981
816
940
486
68
20
6
2
3
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

1
101
501

1001
5001

10001
15001
20001
25001
30001
35001
40001
45001
65001
90001

230001
275001
280001

2235001
11630001
17155001
21320001
52515001

100
500

1000
5000

10000
15000
20000
25000
30000
35000
40000
45000
50000
70000
95000

235000
280000
285000

2240000
11635000
17160000
21325000
52520000

36,957
239,338
741,874

1,115,300
504,864
256,540
103,138
44,400
87,020
31,500
38,500
86,200
49,940
66,784
94,000

232,400
276,665
284,200

2,235,083
11,631,938
17,155,639
21,324,829
52,516,043

3337            109,153,152 

Pattern of Shareholding
As at December 31, 2020
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By the order of the Board

_____________
Adil Siddique
Company Secretary

Karachi: April 8, 2021

To transact any other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair.5.
ANY OTHER BUSINESS:

To confirm the minutes of the 19th Annual General Meeting held on April 30, 2020 and Extra Ordinary 
General Meeting held on February 24, 2021.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited annual Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended December 31, 2020 together with the Directors' Report, Chairman's Review Report and Auditors' 
Report thereon.

To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration for the financial year ending December 31, 2021. The 
present auditors EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, are retiring and being eligible have offered 
themselves for reappointment.

To consider, declare and approve the final cash dividend @ 50% of Rs. 5.00 per ordinary share of the 
Company, as recommended by the Board of Directors, in addition to the interim cash dividend of Rs. 
20.54 per ordinary share already paid during 2020, thereby making a total cash dividend of Rs. 25.54 per 
ordinary share for the year ended December 31, 2020.

1.

2.

3.

4.

thNotice of the 20  Annual General Meeting

NOTES:

CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS 
The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from April 22, 2021 to April 29, 2021 (both days 
inclusive) when no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration. Transfers in good order, received at the 
office of Company's Share Registrar, “M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B', 
SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi – 74400” by the close of business on April 21, 2021 will be treated in 
time for the purpose of ascertaining the entitlement of transferees for payment of final dividend and to attend, 
speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

thNotice is hereby given that the 20  Annual General Meeting [AGM] of Pakistan International Container Terminal 
Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Thursday, April 29, 2021 at 10:00 a.m., via video-conferencing to 
transact the following business. Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan [SECP] in terms of Circular 
No. 6 of 2021 has clarified that due to practical difficulties in terms of Corona Virus related contingency planning 
for General meetings, listed companies may opt to hold their general meetings through electronic mode only. 
Accordingly, in view of surge in the spread of Covid-19 and the practical difficulties in maintaining social 
distance in public gathering to safeguard the health and well-being of shareholders and participants, AGM of 
the Company will be held via video-conferencing only.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
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PARTICIPATION IN THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Shareholders can login through video-link, i.e., https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-365/microsoft-
teams/download-app to participate in the AGM proceedings. For this the shareholders are requested to 
register their particulars with the Company Secretary office adil.siddique@pict.com.pk of the Company before 
close of business hours on April 27, 2021 for permitting requisite access. Shareholders can also provide their 
comments/suggestions for the proposed agenda items of the AGM on email adil.siddique@pict.com.pk  

All members are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting. A Member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the 
above meeting is entitled to appoint another person as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of 
him/her and a proxy so appointed shall have such rights, as respects attending, speaking and voting at the 
above meeting as are available to the Member.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 
2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Duly completed, signed and stamped instrument of proxy (as enclosed) and the other authority under which it is 
signed, or anotarially certified copy thereof, in order to be valid, must be lodged with the Company Secretary at 
the Registered Office of the Company (Berths 6-9, East Wharf, Karachi Port, Karachi) not less than 48 hours 
before the commencement of the Meeting. In calculating the aforesaid period of 48 hours no account shall be 
taken of any part of the day that is not a working day. The proxy need not be a Member of the Company. 

FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING
In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder, shall authenticate his / her identity by 
showing his / her valid original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time 
of attending the meeting.

In case of a corporate entity / trust, the Board of Directors' / Trustees' resolution / power of attorney with 
specimen signature of the representative / nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

The members registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, I.D. numbers and account 
numbers in CDS.

FOR APPOINTING PROXIES
In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder, shall submit the duly completed and 
stamped proxy form accordingly.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be 
mentioned on the form. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of 
the meeting and copy of CNIC of Member of whom he/she holds Proxy. Attested copies of valid CNIC or 
the passport of the beneficial owners / members and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

In case of a corporate entity / trust, the Board of Directors' / Trustees' resolution / power of attorney with 
specimen signature of the representative / nominee shall be submitted along with proxy form to the 
Company.

POSTAL BALLOT
Members can demand a poll and exercise their right to vote by means of postal ballot i.e by post or through 
electronic mode subject to the requirements of section 143 to section 145 of the Act and applicable 
clauses of the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

A.

B.

C.

https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-365/microsoft-teams/download-app
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-365/microsoft-teams/download-app
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thNotice of the 20  Annual General Meeting

  PICT Shares Registrar 
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, 
CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S
Main Shahrah e Faisal, Karachi.
+92-21 111-111-500 
info@cdcsrsl.com

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited
Berth # 6-9, East Wharf, Karachi Port
Karachi.
+92 21 32855701-9 Ext. 2602
investor-relations@pict.com.pk 

PICT Investor Relations Department  

MINUTES OF 19TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND PREVIOUS EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL 
MEETING
Copies of the minutes of the 19th Annual General Meeting held on April 30, 2020 and Extra Ordinary General 
Meeting held on February 24, 2021 will be available to the Members on submission of written request.

MANDATORY PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE AND SUBMISSION 
OF COPIES OF VALID CNIC & NATIONAL TAX NUMBER [NTN] CERTIFICATE
The provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 require the listed companies that any dividend 
payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the 
entitled shareholders.  Accordingly, the shareholders holding physical shares are requested to provide the 
information on a Dividend mandate form (enclosed) to the Company's Share Registrar at the address given 
herein above. In case of CDC account holders, the same information should be provided directly to the CDS 
participant/ CDC Investor Account Services. The Company or its Share Registrar cannot act on any request 
received directly from the Members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank 
mandates. The form is also available at the Company website i.e. www.pict.com.pk.

The designated bank account details should be of the title holder of the shares or Account title in Central 
Depository System.

As per sections 132 (2) and 134(1)(b) of the Act together read with Circular No. 10 dated May 21, 2014 of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, members can also avail video conference facility for 
attending the Annual General Meeting in a city other than in which Annual General Meeting is being held. In this 
regard, please fill the following and submit to the registered address of the Company at least seven (7) days 
before holding of the Annual General Meeting. If the Company receives demand from members holding in 
aggregate 10% or more of the total paid up capital residing in a city, to participate in the meeting through video 
conference at least seven (7) days before holding of the Annual General Meeting, the Company will arrange 
video conference facility in the city subject to availability of such facility in that city.

“I/We, _____________________ of ___________________, being a member of Pakistan International Container 
Terminal Limited, holder of ______________________ ordinary share(s) as per register Folio No./CDC account 
detai ls ______________________________ hereby opt for video conference faci l i ty at 
______________________________________.     
         ____________________
             Signature of Member

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date 
of Annual general meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

For any query / problem / information, the investors may contact the Company and / or the Share Registrar at 
the following phone numbers and email addresses:

VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY
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The Individual Members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIC and Corporate Entities who 
have not yet submitted their NTN are once again reminded to have these details updated with their respective 
CDS participants, in case of CDC account holders and to send the same at the earliest directly to the 
Company's Share registrar at the address given herein above, in case of physical shareholders. Please provide 
folio numbers with the copy of CNIC / NTN.

In case of non-receipt of valid Bank details given herein above and copy of valid CNIC or NTN, the Company 
would withhold future dividend payments to such shareholders as per the provisions of section 243(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017.

DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX

The Government of Pakistan has made certain amendments in Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the 
companies. These rates are as per law.

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of Cash Dividend, all the members whose names 
are not entered into Active Tax-Payers List (ATL), despite the fact that they are filers are advised to make sure 
that their names are entered into ATL available at e-portal of Federal Board of Revenue (“FBR”), before the date 
of commencement of book closure for cash dividend. The Company as per the law shall apply 30% rate of 
withholding tax if the shareholder's name with relevant details does not appear on the Active Taxpayer list as 
mentioned in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Withholding Tax exemption from the dividend income shall only be allowed if copy of valid tax exemption 
certificate is made available to the Company's share registrar by April 21, 2021.

In the case of shares registered in the name of two or more shareholders, each joint-holder is to be treated 
individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted by the Company on the basis of shareholding of 
each joint-holder as may be notified to the Company in writing. All shareholders who hold shares jointly are 
requested to provide shareholding proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint holder(s) in respect of shares 
held by them to our Shares Registrar, in writing as follows:

Folio/CDC 
Account 

No. 

Total 
Shares 

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder  

CNIC No.

 

SignatureName and 
CNIC
No.

 
 

Shareholding
Proportion

(No. of Shares)

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  Name and 
CNIC
No.

Shareholding
Proportion

(No. of Shares)

The required information must reach our Share Registrar by the close of business on April 21, 2021; otherwise it 
will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s) and deduction of 
withholding tax will be made accordingly.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS/SHARES
Shareholders who could not collect their dividend/shares are advised to contact our Share Registrar to claim 
their unclaimed dividend or shares, if any.

The Unclaimed shares, Modaraba Certificates, Dividend, Other instruments, which remain so unclaimed for a 
period of three years from the date it is due and payable shall be dealt with in accordance with the requirements 
of section 244 of the Act.

CIRCULATION OF NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING & ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO No. 470(I)/2016 dated May 31, 2016, 
has allowed listed companies to circulate their Annual Audited Accounts to its members through CD/DVD/USB
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at their registered addresses instead of sending them in hard copies, subject to approval obtained from 
shareholders in General Meeting. Accordingly, the Company obtained approval from members in the 16th 
Annual General Meeting held on April 24, 2017. Pursuant to the approval of members, as aforesaid, the Annual 
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020, will be circulated to the 
members through CD/DVD/USB.

In terms of SRO No 787(I)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, shareholders can opt to obtain annual balance sheet 
and profit and loss account, auditor's report and directors report etc. along with the notice of Annual General 
Meeting through email. The Companies Act, 2017 also allow electronic circulation of annual financial statements 
and reports thereon. Accordingly, we are pleased to offer this facility to our members who desire to receive 
Annual Financial Statements and Notices of the Company through e-mail in future.

For the convenience of shareholders, a Standard Request Form has been made available at the Company's 
website i.e. www.pict.com.pk, to opt receiving of future annual reports through email or in hard copies. Please 
ensure that your email has sufficient rights and space available to receive such email which may be larger than     
1 MB file in size. Further, it is the responsibility of the member to timely update to the Share Registrar of any 
change in the registered email address.

The duly filled & signed form can be submitted through post/courier to the Company's Share Registrar at the 
address given herein above. In case of CDC account holders, the same information should be provided directly to 
the CDS participant/ CDC Investor Account Services. The forms are also available at the Company website i.e. 
www.pict.com.pk. Members who do not provide their email ids or request for a hard copy shall continue to 
receive their future Annual Financial Statements and reports through CD/ DVD/USB at the registered address. 

PLACEMENT OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON WEBSITE
Annual audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020 along with reports 
have been made available on the Company's website  terms of Regulation 25 of the www.pict.com.pk.
Companies (General Provisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018 together read with SRO 634(I) of 2014.

SUBMISSION OF ZAKAT EXEMPTION
Members are requested to submit declaration as per Zakat & Ushr Ordinance, 1980 for Zakat exemption and to 
advise change in address, if any.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS 
Any change of address of Members should be immediately notified to the Company's share registrar M/S CDC 
Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahrah e Faisal, Karachi.

CONVERSION OF SHARES IN BOOK-ENTRY FORM
Members holding shares in physical form may convert their shares from physical form to book-entry form. 
Members can contact the Company or Share Registrar for assistance in this regard. Shareholders are also 
requested to follow the procedure as contained in CDC Act, 1997 for the purpose.

Shareholders are requested to provide any relevant information/documents to (i) respective Central Depository 
System (CDS) Participants and (ii) in case of physical securities to the Company / Share Registrar.

thNotice of the 20  Annual General Meeting
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ICTSI: 

PICT: 

KPT: 

ISO: 

NIT:

SRO:

CEO: 

CFO: 

CSR: 

CDC: 

CDCSRL:

IFRS: 

IFRIC: 

ICAP: 

Board: 

SRB: 

SECP: 

PSX:

International Container Terminal Services Incorporation
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FORM OF PROXY
The Company Secretary

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited

Berth # 6-9, East Wharf, Keamari

Karachi Port, Karachi.

I /We, _____________________________________ S/o, D/o, W/o, _____________________________________ of 

__________________________being a member of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited (the Company) and holder of 

___________________ Shares as per Share Register Folio No. _________ and/or CDC Participant I.D. No. _________ and Sub Account No. 

__________ hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss _________________________________ of _______________________ as my/our proxy to attend, 

thspeak and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 20  Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on April 29, 2021  via video-

conferencing. 

As witnessed given under my / our hand(s) ___________ day of ____________ 2021

Witnesses:

1. Name ________________________________________________

Address ________________________________________________

CNIC No. ________________________________________________

Signature ________________________________________________

2. Name ________________________________________________ Shareholder's Folio No._______________

Address ________________________________________________ CDC A/c No:                 _______________

CNIC No. _______________________________________________ NIC No:                         _______________

Signature _______________________________________________ Dated:                           _______________

Signature on
Rs. 5/-

Revenue Stamp

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another person as his/her proxy who shall have such rights as respects               
    attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to a member.

2. The proxy in order to be valid must be signed across Five Rupees Revenue Stamp and should be deposited with the Company not later             
    than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting.

3. The proxy shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or original passport and bring folio number at the time of     
    attending the meeting.

4. Signature should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.

5. CDC shareholders and their Proxies must attach either an attested photocopy of their Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or 
    Passport with this Proxy Form.

6. In case of proxy by a corporate entity/trust, Board of Directors/Trustees resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature and 
    attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the proxy shall be submitted along with the proxy form.







REQUEST FORM FOR TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT & NOTICE OF 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) THROUGH EMAIL OR IN HARD COPY

The Share Registrar Services (Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited)
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited 
99-B, Block 'B', SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi - 74400        
Tel: +92-21-111-111-500, Fax: +92-21-34326053
Email: info@cdcsrsl.com

Date:  ________________

Subject: Request for transmission of Annual Reports and Notice of AGM through Email or in Hard copy

I/we hereby request to receive Annual Reports and Notice of AGM through email or in hard copy instead of receiving them 
through CD/DVD/USB as mentioned below:

MEMBERSHIP DETAILS

 

Name of the Shareholder(s)

  

Folio No. / CDC Participants ID A/C No.

  

CNIC No.

      

-

        

-

  

Land Line Phone Number

  

Cell Number

  

Passport No. (incase of foreign shareholder)

  

Valid Email Address 

 

(To be recorded in the Member Register maintained under Section 
119 of the Companies Act, 2017)

 
 

Registered Postal Address 
 

(As per Member Register maintained under Section 119 of the 
Companies Act, 2017)

 
 

 

MODE OF RECEIVING ALL FUTURE ANNUAL REPORTS ALONG WITH NOTICE OF AGM THROUGH 
EMAIL OR IN HARD COPY UNDER SECTION 223 (6) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017, INSTEAD OF 

RECEIVING THEM THROUGH CD/DVD/USB 
(Please select any one option)

 
 

 
 

OPTION 1: Through email on the valid email address provided 
above  

 

OPTION 2: Hard copies on my registered postal address   
It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and that I/We will intimate the changes in the abovementioned 

information to the Company and / or the concerned Share Registrar as soon as these occur.

I/we hereby further authorize the Company to update my/our particulars mentioned above in the member register of the 
Company alongwith email address mentioned.

I/we undertake that by sending the Audited Financial Statements and Notices through e-mail by the Company, the Company 
shall be considered compliant with the relevant requirements of section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017. In case a hard 
copy of Audited Financial Statements and/or Notice of AGM of the Company is desired, specific request for the same will be 
made.

Signature of the Shareholder(s)

 

Communication address of the Company

 

Communication address of the Share Registrar

  

Postal

 

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 
Berths No. 6-9, East Wharf,

 

Karachi Port, Karachi

 

M/s Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 
99-B, Block-B, SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, 
Karachi -74400.

 

  

e-mail 
address

 

investor-relations@pict.com.pk

 

info@cdcpak.com

 · Please attach attested photocopy of the valid CNIC / valid Passport.

· This Request Form is optional and not compulsory.

· The shareholders who hold shares in physical form are requested to submit the above information to the Share  

 Registrar at the address as mentioned above.

· The shareholders who are maintaining shareholdings under Central Depository System (CDS) i.e. in CDC are 

 advised to submit the above information to their Participant / CDC Investor Account Service.

Notes:

mailto:info@cdcpak.com




FORM (E-DIVIDEND MANDATE)

§ Please provide complete IBAN after checking with your concerned Bank branch along with Account maintenance certificate, 
 to enable electronic credit directly into your bank account. In case of any error or omission in IBAN, the Company will not be  
 held responsible in any manner for any loss or delay in your cash dividend payment.
§ Please attach attested clear photocopy of valid CNIC/ Passport/NTN.
§ In case of Joint shareholders, all joint shareholders are required to sign this form.
§ The shareholders who hold shares in physical form are requested to submit the above information to the concerned Share 
Registrar.
§ Shareholders maintaining their shareholdings under Central Depository System (CDS) are advised to submit this form directly 
to relevant Participant / CDC Investor Account Service with a copy to share registrar.
All fields of the form have to be compulsorily filled up. In case of nil information for a particular field, 'N/A' is to be written. The form is to be 
filled up by the shareholder himself / herself in Block Capitals with blue colour ball point pen

Notes:

The Share Registrar Services (Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited)
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited 
99-B, Block 'B', SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi - 74400        
Tel: +92-21-111-111-500, Fax: +92-21-34326053
Email: info@cdcsrsl.com

 Subject: Bank account details for payment of Cash Dividend through electronic mode

Dear Sir      
 
I/We, Mr. / Ms. / Mrs._________________________________________ S/o D/o W/o, _________________________________ 
being registered shareholder(s) of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited (the Company) hereby authorize the 
Company to directly credit cash dividends declared by it, if any, from time to time in the below mentioned bank account. 

- -

Name of the Shareholder 

Folio No. / CDC Participants ID A/C No.  

CNIC No. 

Passport No. (in case of foreign shareholder) 

NTN (in case of corporate entity) 

Land Line Phone Number 

Cell Number 

Valid E-mail address 

(i)  Shareholder's detail 

Title of the Bank Account  

Type of Bank Account 

IBAN 

Bank's Name 

Branch Name and Branch Code No. 

Full mailing address and contact No. 

of Branch 

(ii) Shareholder's bank detail 

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and I/We shall intimate the changes in the above-mentioned 
information to the Share Registrar and Company as soon as these occur.

I/We hereby further authorize Company to update my/our particulars mentioned above in the member register of the 
Company along with email address mentioned. 

Signature of the Shareholder Signature of Joint shareholder 1 Signature of Joint shareholder 2 Signature of Joint shareholder 3

mailto:info@cdcpak.com
mailto:info@cdcpak.com




For accessing Investor Relations of PICT long on to http://www.pict.com.pk/InvestorRelations.aspx



Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 
Registered & Terminal Office:

Berths 6-9, East Wharf, Karachi Port, Karachi, Pakistan.

UAN: (+9221) 111 11 PICT (7428) 

Fax: (+9221) 32854815

www.pict.com.pk 

A publication of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited. All Rights reserved. 
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